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DePfa Group is a specialist
international financial institution
that caters for qulic sector entities
and the property sector. In 2002
DePfa Group will be split into two
independent publicly listed banks
allowing for an even greater focus on

the different areas of business.

Public sector financial services
DePfa provides a broad range of
products and services to public sector
entities from government budget
financing and financing of infrastruc-
ture projects to placing of public
sector assets and advisory services.
An investment banking approach
exploits the fink between DePfa's
financing activities and its strong
capital markets position with institu-
tional investors. The budget financing
activities, in particular, are- underpinned
by the successful issuing business
where DePfa has pioneered major

Corporate profile

developments in the Pfandbrief
market. The new public sector bank
which will be based in Ireland will
continue to develop its business
activities in Europe, North America and

Japan.

Property business

DePfa is & property specialist offering
products and services in the areas

of financing, asset management,
advisory services and IT. Since the
beginning of the 1990s DePfa has
successfully built up an international -
property network spanning 15
countries. In addition, customers can
rely on teams of experienced

specialists covering individual types of

property. DePfa (T Services is a

leading European provider of

software and IT services in the field of

property management, with over
3,000 large institutional clients. With a
widekoﬁering of products and services
the new property bank will focus on
different customer groups made up of
domestic and international commercial
property investors, residential property
developers, customers from the
residential housing sector and private

clients.

Since its privatisation in 1990 DePfa
has undergone a profound transfor-
mation from a German state enterprise
to an international bank with a market
capitalisation today of approximately

€ 3 billion. The split in 2002 marks
another great milestone for DePfa and
is designed to create even more value

for sharehoiders.

www.depfa.com
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Dear Shareholder

2000 was a year of consolidation for

DePfa Group in terms of its financial results.
However, it was also a year in wh‘ich we
instituted the most significant strategic
changes in the 80-year history of our
Group. The decline in net income for the -
year was in large part due to measures
launching this new strategic course. The
continued strategic development of our
public sector finance and property busi-
nesses will lead to the split of DePfa Group
into two independent banks. This has made
it necessary tc implement a thorough
review of all the areas of risk in the Group
and to take the appropriate sfeps that are
reflected in the strong adverse impact on

the results of the property business. Loan

Shareholders

- L»ett_e.ri to Shareholders

Market capitafisation:
€3bn .
36 m shares

8.34% Bayerische Beamten-Lebensversicherung aG
8.34% Schweizerische Lebensvers.- und Rentenanstalt
6.24% Versorgungsanstait des Bundes und der Lénde_r
5.67% Bankhaus Lampe KG

= 4.50% Deutscher Ring Beteiligungs-Holding

2.68% Schmiat-Bank

2.56% Entenial S.A.

B Free fioat 1.27% Condor Lebensversicherungs-AG

B39 Defra Holding

Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH © DePla Group

loss provisions have been increased from
€62.mto € 154 m. In addition, we have
carried out a revaluation of our own
property holdings, resulting in write-downs
amounting to € 91 m. We plan to sell this
property portfolio worth approximately

€ 1 bn in the next one to two years. After
addressing the outstanding problem areas
but alsc given difficult capital market
conditions, DeP_fa Group's net income for
the year totalled € 155 m, on a par with
1888, but 44% below the record year 1999.
In 2001, we intend to again achieve the
excellent results of 1999. We are therefore .
proposing an unchanged dividend of € 1

per share.

The split will give rise to two very different
financial groups. Thé independent public
sector finance group will be positioned over
the next few years as one of the world's
leading financial service providers for the
public sector. The independent property
group with its international structure will
provide domestic and international clients
with a comprehensive range of financial,
advisory and IT services, enhancing its

positicn as an international market leader.

We urge you as our sharehoiders to give
your full backing to these plans. We will call
an extraordinary shareholders' meeting in

Qctober 2001 where our strategic re-

organisation will be put to the vote and the
measures necessary for its implementation




will be submitted for your final approval. The
definitive split under company law will then
take place in mid-2002. As the current
holder of one DePfa share, you wil sub-
sequently hold one public sector finance
bank share and one property bank share.

The DePfa share began life after the IPO on
12 March 1991. In the ten years since then,
the share price has posted above-average
gains, outperforming all the relevant indices.
Assuming that the dividends and all sub-
scription rights were reinvested, a

DM 10,000 investment in DePfa shares in
March 1991 would have grown after 10
years into DM 57,600, corresponding to an
average annual return of 19.2%. We are
confident that the stock market will respond
favourably tc our reorganisation with a
mark-up in the share price, given the
generally all-round positive reactions to the
presentation of our strategy. However, the
weaker operating result in 2000 triggered a
decline in the share price, and DePfa shares
are currently trading at its lowest level for

the year. We will shortly be publishing

medium term profitability targets for the two
separate banks, which will further nighlight

the potential of the strategic reorganisation.

The following pages of this Annual Report
go into the main points outlined here in
more detail. More information on the new '
structure will be.provided at the forth-
coming Annual General Meeting in
Wiesbaden on 20 June 2001 which you are
cordially invited to attend. The enclosed
invitation to the Annual General Meeting
gives details of the individual items on the

agenda.

Yours faithfully

KMM

Bruckermann
Dr. Kolbeck

Kremer

Glauner

W{A e

Dr. Lammerskitten




Management Discussion

Strategic reorganisation

DePfa Group is currently preparing for a
radical strategic recrganisation. By January
2002 the internal structure of the Group wil
,bevseparated into two autonomous com-
panies, and subject to the consent of the
Annual General Meeting, the split into two
independent publicly listed groups will
follow in mid 2002. Present holders of
OePfa shares will then own shares in a
public sector finance bank and a property
bank. This development can be seen as a
logical step for both businesses in their
approach ‘to meet the specialist require-
ments of their respective client groups.

Net income for the year and RoE after tax - Group
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Since its privatisation 11 years ago DePfa
has successfully developed into an inter-
national specialist institution focusing on its
core businesses of public sector finance
and property / IT services. What used to be
a state-owned institution with a low capital
base, a small number of clients and a
market limited by national boundaries has
become a successful specialist institution
with international reach. Given our develop-
ment o date and a background of radical

’ change in the financial services industry, a

significant expansion of our company is
now a very real possibility. The ideal solution
is to split the DePfa Group into two inde-

pendent, publicly listed banking groups.

This cdmplete legal separation of the public -
sector finance and property businesses is

a major step in the company's 80-year
history and wil create value for all our
stakeholders; our clients, shareholders and
staff alike.

The aim of the restructuring in connection
with the split is to create a public sector
banking group headed by a parent com-
pany in Dublin. DePfa's public sector

finance activities already extend far beyond
the traditional iimits of the German Mort-

B AL T L e,

gage Bank Act. This development calls.for
anew organisational framework, the central- ——— —
components of which will be DePfa-Bank f
Europe plc together with DePfa Deutsche '
Pfandbriefoank AG and DePfa Investment 1
Bank Ltd. The Group will also be present at




further locations in New York, Tokyo and
London, as well as in many of the capital

cities of continental Europe.

Parallel to this, the property bank will be
headed by DePfa Bank AG in Wiesbaden
as its parent company. This bank will cater
to the ever more sophisticated needs of
clients that go far beyond traditional
financing. A network of branches in
Gerh’mény, Europe and the USA is already in
place. lts activities will focus mainly on
professional property clients. Some pro-

perty banking units will be repositioned.

The strategies for thé two businesses can
be implemented with only partial success or
none at all within the existing Group struc-
ture. We are constantly testing the limits of
the German Mortgage Bank Act. A split
would ensure that each business can focus
without compromise on its respective client
group and it is the only way tc enable the
new companies 1o continue their develop-
ment and secure a long term increase in
shareholder value.

There are many reasons to split the two

businesses. These are the most salient:

(1) Equity investors have very different
reasons for investing in public sector
finance activities on the one hand and
property activities on the other. A

combination of two very different types

of business may act as a deterrent {o

investors. The capital market will there-
fore give a greater valuation to two
focused, specialist institutions more
highly than the present mortgage bank

model.

The German Mortgage Bank Act and
the specialist bank principle enshrined
within it uniquely establish property
business and public sector finance as
the core business areas of a German
mortgage bank. This made sense in the
past but today these businesses diverge
to such an extent that they offer

© absolutely no cross-selling potential.

==
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Splitting a company, particularly a
financial institution, appears to fly in the
face of the current trend of mergers and
consolidation. However, the options for
a specialist to respond to ever larger
corporate units by seeking economies
of scale are very limited. Of much
greater significance are an even greater
specialisation and international leader-

ship in the relevant market segment.

In public sector finance, funding advan-
tages are crucial to a successful entry in
new markets and the strengthening of
customer ties. A strong capital base,
excellent asset quality and a good credit
rating are essential in this business. In

the property business, capital markets




~

play less of a role. Rather, it is important
to develop financing structures that
cater to the ever more sophisticated
needs of clients with a wide range of ‘
financial and other services, while also
keeping a tight rein on overall financing
risks.

The rating agency, Moody's, has already
reacted positively to the announcement
of the reorganisation by significantly
upgrading the ratings of DePfa-Bank
Europe plc and changing its ‘negative
outlook' for Deutsche Pfandbriefoank to
'stable’. The fundamental financial
strength rating of the Group was raised
from C+ to B, thereby placing DePfa in
a small elite group of German banks.

Two focused specialist institutions have
attractive strategic options in the form of
acquisitions and mergers, but these
possibilities are restricted when two
different business fields are combined.

©)

There is currently a clear trend among
financial service providers towards
disaggregation, the process by which
many companies prepare the take-over
or spin-off of business units.

The planned expansion of investment
banking activities within pubiic sector
finance creates the need for an equity
participation structure for key staff, and
it would be difficult to attract investmént
bankers to a property-oriented group.
On the other hand, a distinct property
bank can project a much more focused
image in the labour market, making it
more attractive as an employer.

In terms of tax issues, company law

and banking supervision there are no

~ drawbacks that significantly offset the

commercial advantages of the reorgani- _
sation and the split.




Public sector finance ;
and funding

The aim of the reorganisation. is to position
ourselves within a few years as one of the
world’s leading providers of public sector
financial services. We shall cover the entire
value chain for public séctor financial ser-
vices with a wide range of services, ranging
from budget financing, project finance and
infrastructure finance, through originatidn,
underwriting and placing of public sector
assets to credit analysis, advisory services
and asset management. In the run-up to
the split, we will expand these areas,
allocating more capital to this business and

strengthening our capital market activities.

Since its privatisafion in 1990 with the
resulting loss of the funding guarantee,
DePfa’s public sector finance activities have
gfown from its origins in the local authority
loan business. Brokers were used in the
acquisition of loans and the placement of
the Pfandbrief issues in the capital markets.
At the time,. DePfa Group's funding costs
were on average flat on a LIBOR basis, at
around the same level as its competitors.

in the meantime, DePfa has made a big
strategic shift away from the use of brokers

in its activities.

The development of our public sector

finance business 10 its present position

has been m'arked by an unswerving focus
on the client. We have direct client contacts
with many state entities. DePfa is now
highly regarded for its leading edge exper-
tise in capital market transactions and for its
relationships with institutional investors. In
addition, we are now the global cost
leader in this particular field. In this context,
cost leadership signifies a low interest cost
burden that has been significantly reduced
through our funding strategy. On the other
hand, it also signifies low operating costs
that re‘late very favourably to earnings in this
business segment. DePfa Group's interast
costs relative to LIBOR and the swap curve
have fallen slightly over the last 7 to 8 years.
Individual product and currency areas as

well as various maturities have experienced

Volume of international public sector finance
as at 31 Dec 2000 - Group

€bn
Japan 10.0
Canada 1.8

Switzerland 0.3 @*‘ > ‘
Greece 1.6 2 e ftaly 17.4

Others 0.5

Finland 1.5

The Netherlands 2.0\ 4
UK 08 \ﬂ
Austria 3.0 k
Poland 0.8 ___
Portugal 0.9

Jreland 0.3 J
Sweden 1. 7_____/ {

Spain 8.7

France 10.7

Denmark 1.7

‘__ Belgium/Luxemburg 2.0
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DePfa Investment Bank Ltd.

Selection of transactions

REPUBLIC
OF KAZAKHSTAN

Eurobond

USD 350 m

Co-Lead Manager
MAY 2000

REPUBLIC OF
CROATIA

Term Loan

EUR 320 m

Arranger
SEPTEMBER 2000

CITY OF
BRATISLAVA

Eurobond

JPY 10,950 m

Co-Lead Manager
AUGUST 2000

REPUBLIC OF
POLAND

Eurobond
EUR 750 m

Co-Lead Manager
FEBRUARY 2001

PHOENIX GLOBAL

Sovereign Collateralized
Bond Obiligation
USD 250 m

Advisor
SEPTEMBER 2000

REPUBLIC OF
LITHUANIA

Eurcbond

EUR 200 m

Co-Lead Manager
FEBRUARY 2001

an increase in interest costs, while ather
areas have seen an improvement. Today,
however, our crucial strategic advantage
derives from the fact that the funding costs
of our competitors and banks overall have
risen by approximately 10 basis points over
the same period. Compared with our
competitors, our position is, as a result, far
more favourable than the initial situation

8 years ago. This relative improvement has

been made possible by paying close
attention to fhe investor base. Qur
capital and money market products are
ideally suited to the needs of major institu-
tional investors worldwide and this has
been compiemented for many years by
direct account management on the money

market side. We are in regular daily contact

" with global fixed income investors via our
deposit business. We intend fo reinforce




these relationships still further and use them
over the next few years to sell other capital
market products, ihclud‘mg derivatives in ‘
addition to money market products and

asset management.

Our low c‘:ost funding base stands in perfect
.unison with cur low operating cost base. As
a result, we are able to service major insti-

tutional Cli-ents efficiently. Through our
franchise we are aiming to expand our
financing business in Europe and to supple-
ment our budget finance portfalio with
higher margin business. Our low cost pro-
duction gives us an edge in a highly

competitive market,

Our expertise in credit analysis of public
sector entities is just as important as our
cost advantage, allowing an accurate
_pricing of public sector loans and, in parti-
cular, effective risk controlling. At DePfa-
Bank Europe pic in Dublin, we have built up
a centre of competence for credit analysis
and loan approval. The standards for our
credit analysis have uniform application
worldwide in the Group and are integrated
in our internal rating system. This unique
expertise gives us a competitive edge when
entering new markets, as is the case in
Japan, in particular. Our credit analysis
capability not only supports our investment
decisions but is also applied successfully in
the placing of securities issued by public

sector debtors with other investors.

Furthermore, we have ensured that our
internal rating procedures to reduce pres-
sure on equity satisfy the conditions for the
expected new Basel capital adequacy ruies.

Our success so far can be largely attributed
to the willingness of staff to produce
particularly high guality work. An efficient
investrment banking mentality, which focus-
es both on the customer and value added,
has emerged from an acute awareness that
the DePfa Group can draw particular ’
advantages from its excellent account
management. Throughout the world, staff
in the public sector finance division are
conscious of the fact that DePfa's advan-
tage lies solely in focusing on the interests
of the public sector. It is the épeed, flexibility

and guality of our services that matter.

At DePfa’s public sector finance bank,
securitisation by means of Pfandbriefe is no
longer the end as in a traditional German
mortgage bank, but only the means to the
end. Securitisation provides a stable
earnings stream over several years. On the
basis of our expertise in credit analysis, we
shall continue to further expand our advi-
sory and placement business with

corresponding commission income.

We have now achieved a high degree of
acceptance with public sector entities in
Western Europe. In this respect, we are

concentrating on those public sector




Property business and
IT services

_Our strategic objective is 1o create a flexible
ihtemational property group with an inter-
national network and a comprehensive
product range. We offer financial and
advisory services, asset management and
IT services to various client groups ranging
from major German and internaticnal
investors in commercial property to clients
in the housing sector, residential property

developers as well as private clients.

in future, our activities will focus increasingly

on the following target groups and sectors:

(1) We have an outstanding position in
international property business as a
specialist in commercial property
finance, and here our clients are primari-
ly major German and internationat
investors and property developers. With
local staff complemented by teams of
industry specialists, we have been able
to concentrate on complex financing
packages and advisory mandates. In
this-business line, the return on equity
amounts to 35% before tax, with no
record of loan losses in the last 10
years. We shall pursue our current
strategy in this field, i.e. we shall extend
our activities in Europe and expand into
the USA as well.

{(2) In business with the institutional
housing industry we enjoy a dominant
position in Germany. We act as principal
bankers in all aspects of financing for
our clients in this field, with the deposit-
taking business constituting an impor-
tant part of the product range. in recent
years, we have also expanded our
investment banking and advisory ser-
vices. There are tremendous cross-
selling opportunities for products of
DePfa IT Services AG. For this business
line we aim to consolidate and further
develop our market position. Cur aim is
to go beyond traditional banking ser-
vices and establish ourselves as an
adviscry bank for this client group, and
in this respect we are able to structure
modern financial solutions to meet
individual client requirements. We shall .
achieve this by means of greater cen-
fralised management combined with the
appropriate regional presence. At 30%,
pre-tax Rok is already good and there
have been virtually no lcan losses recor-
ded for this client group to date. It will
be possible to increase profitability in
this field still further via syndication and

securitisation of long term financings.

The residential property develop-

&

ment business is a core area of exper-
tise of our branches in Germany. Due to
our decentralised approach and an in-

depth knowledge of local markets, we




=

have built up an excellent reputation in
the market in this particular field. We
offer our clients principally development
financing that comes with IT supported
control programmes. We intend to
expand this area of business primarily
with market participants who have been
sstablished for many years. The exper-
tise within the branches will be develop-
ed still further for this purpose and a
nationwide network of centres of
competence established. Qur approach
in this business combines product
development and research areas with
expertise pooled in régional centres of
competence. However, stringent risk
management remains important in this
area of business. Where this is im-
plemented successfully and with the
appropriate operational size it will be
possible to achieve pre-tax RoE of over

30% in this business line as well.

With regard to business with project
developers and commercial
property finance in Germany, the
former East Germany was considered
to be a market of great potential at the
beginning of the 1990s. However, the
rapid build-up of business in eastern
Germany led to considerable losses.
Today, problem loans and repossessed
properties are managed by workout

groups.

-

In the'meantime, our commercial

property financing in Germany has got
off to'a fresh start with a very strong
focus on prudent management, a high
degree of structuring expertise and high
standards with regard to our clients’
credit standing. The entry of new client
groups such as property companies
and international investors clearly reflect
changes in the market and give us the
confidence that we will be able to im-
plement our concept without any com-

promise on risk.

In recent years, the private client
business has been characterised by
low volume growth. The lack of critical
mass and the absence of cross-sslling
opportunities, combined with high pro-
duction costs in our branch business,
have led to low levels of profitability of
13% before tax. In addition, there has
been a sharp deterioration in market
conditions, with margins in standardised
products falling to 0.3% over the last
two years. DePfa Group will gradually
withdraw from the private client busi-
ness in its traditional form. Instead
DePfa will concentrate on sales techni-
ques that will not impact on the balance
sheet. It will also manage the lending
portfolio and new business through a
separate company, which will also offer
its services to third parties and thus

achieve economies of scale.




International property lending portfolio - Group

RO SIS

€m
Turkey 32

Switzerland 214______—
Spain 115 s
Italy 833

Denmark 638 %

Belgium/Luxemburg 617

Sweden 444 {

We are already well positioned with
Hypqtheken-Discount GmbH as one
of the leading German discount brokers
for property financing in the private client
segment. The company not only works
under its own Hypotheken-Discount
brand, but also overtly (co-branding) or
covertly acts as a mortgage finance
specialist for other banks or financial
institutions. Call centres and the Internet
are used 10 generate New busingss with
very low production costs, both for DePfa
and for cther companies. We are
currently studying the possibility of out-
sourcing the Bank’s sales units into a joint
unit with Hypotheken-Discount as well as
further developing the sales concept in

line with a multi-channel approach.

e S veeadi 2

USA 705

Poland 92 . |
Czech Rep. 87.

UK. 2,446

The Netherlands 805

France 845

© DePfa Group

DePfa Hypotheken-Management
GmbH was established in 1999. This is
a highly developed processing platform

. which supplies a complete loan

processing service for clients (DePfa or
third parties). We have positioned our-
selves in this part of the value chain with
a stringent focus on workflow and more
flexible service, combined with {T
leadership, and offer this cutsourcing
product to banks or insurance com-
panies. The products range from credit
assessment by means of scoring pro-
cedures to loan commitments, an elec-
tronic client file, monitoring of payment
transactions, loan administration and all .

aspects of risk management, including

internal and statutory reporting. We shall




Property loans by sector - Group
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gradually transfer the processing of
DePfa Bank’s private client lending port-
folio over to Hypotheken Management.

Syndication and securitisation are
becoming very important for our
property business as a whole. In recent
years, the level of new business has
reached such a point that it would be
unsuitable to keep our lending business
permanently on our books. It may be
that a single individual loan is too big or
that a sub-portfolio has an excessively
dominant position or thaf the ratio of
lending as a whole to equity is not
ideal. As a result of our market position
and our excellent international track

record, other banks are increasingly

7998

2000
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turning to us to participate in our

financings.

To fully expleit our new business
potential and enhance our profitabiiity,
we started to syndicate our financings in
1999 and have stepped up this activity
in 2000, particularly in international busi-
ness and intend to expand it further. in
addition to syndicating individual loané,
the sale of entire portfolios or securitisa-
tion is also becoming increasingly
important. This instrument enables us to
continue our expansion in fields where
we are already well positioned, while at
the same time maintaining an optimum
portfolio structure. One example here is

the securitisation of a hotel portfolio with
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a volume of € 1 bn, which we placed a
few weeks ago. Securitising loans also
enables us to place low margin loans
{e.g. in the private client business) in the
market and free up equity which can

- then be invested in higher margin busi-
ness. We are currently working on the
securitisation of a large portion of our
private client business and have taken
into account the importance of syndica-
tion and securitisation by creating a unit

dedicated to these areas.

{7) Property asset managementis a
sector which offers strong growth
potential. We have built up expertise in
closed-end property funds over many
years and with the establishment of the
euro-zone and abolition of previocus
investment restrictions, more and maore
medium sized institutional investors and
insurance companies are looking at
investing directly or indirectly in proper-
ties outside their traditional markets. In
the light of more than 10 years' ex-
perience in the international markets,
links with major players and readiness

to invest in local markets, DePfa Group
is a credible and sought-after partner for
both German and international institu-
tional investors. To service this market,
we have established a property asset
management companyvand the first
property fund has already been
launched. Investments focus primarily
on shopping centres in ltaly, France and
Spain. We intend to significantly expand
these activities over the next few years.
To further enhance our expertise in
structured finance and in placement
activities we acquired DSF (Deutsche
Structured Finance) last year. The
various units in the Group will develop a
powerful capability for acquisitions by
building up the appropriate strategic
planning and organisation functions. .
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IT services
The activities of the [T services business are

grouped together in DePfa IT Services AG.
As a provider of IT services for the property
‘sector we have established long term rela-
tionships with some 3,000 clients. Business
activities are subdivided into four segments:
IT solutions, [T services, e-business and

consulting.

We have already achieved a leading market
position in the German residential property
market. Qur clients include private housing
companies and institutional investors
{banks, insurance companies, investment
funds). Some 5.5 million residential units in
Germany are managed using software pro-
ducts developed by DePfa IT Services.
Elsewhere in Europe we are reprasented in
France, the UK, ltaly, Poland and Switzer-
land. In addition to our sales activities, inter-
national growth is also achieved through
acquisitions. In February 2000 we acquired
a 70% holding in Swiss company Rimo
Consulting that has since become a wholly
owned subsidiary. In May 2000 we acquired
70% of French-based company, Prem, in
Orléans. DePfa IT Services UK Ltd was
established in August 2000 and took over
Systems Team in Covemry We see signifi-
cant growth potential for our IT products in
these markets. Our aim is to continue to
expand our market pesition in the major

. European countries.

We are at present developing Blue Eagle, a

modular, new-generation software package
standardised for use throughout Eurcpe.
Development work is on-schedule, and
existing systems will be gradually replaced
over the next two years. The Group's”

e-business activities will also be expanded.

In view of the strategic. importance of the
e-b~usiness segment, our activities were
transferred into two independent subsi-
diaries in 2000: B2B activities will in future
be conducted by Mareon AG and B2C
activities by DePfa {T Media AG, the latter
peing currently a research and development

company.

To finance rapid growth in this business
division, DePfa IT Services AG will be
fioated on the stock market at an appro-

priate time.
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Implementing the
reorganisation

An extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of
DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG will be
convened in October 2001 where all the
measures necessary to implement the reor-
ganisation and the subsequent split of the
Group will be submitted to shareholders for
their approval. Subject to the consent of
shareholders the following measures will be

carried out:

A trustee appointed by DePfa Deutséhe
Pfandbriefbank will establish an Irish public
limited company with its head office in
Dublin. The new company will become the
parent company for public sector finance
-activities with a full Irish banking licence.
Thé exchange trustee will prepare an
exchange offer to shareholders of DePfa
Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG and make ~
preparations for trading of the shares of the
new Irish company on the Frankfurt Stock

Exchange.

DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank will as far
as possible transfer its pfoperty assets to
DePfa Bank AG including, in particular, its
property financing portfolic as well as parti-
cipations in property companies.

It is envisaged that DePfa Bank AG will sell
its 80% holding in DePfa Investmentbank

Ltd to DePfa-Bank Eurcpe plc at market
value in December 2001. DePfa Bank AG
will subsequently no longer be involved in

public sector finance activities.

At the beginning of Jénuary 2002, the
e-xisting atypical silent holding of DePfa
Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG in DePfa
Bank AG will be converted into shares in

DePfa Bank AG by way of a capital increase .
against non-cash contributions. The sole
remaining involverment of DePfa Deutsche
Pfandbriefbank AG in DePfa Bank AG will

then be as a shareholder.

It is also envisaged that the new Irish parent
company will circulate a public offer to
shareholders of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbrief-
bank AG to exchange their shares for
certificated shares in the new lrish parent
company in January 2002. The exchange
offer will be executed by the new Irish
parent company carrying out a capital

increase against non-cash contributions. It

" is envisaged that the exchange offer will be

dependent on the participation in the share
éxchange of at least 90% of the share-
holders of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank
AG.

Immediately after the share exchange has

taken place the new Irish parent company

will acqguire all the shares held by DePfa .
Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG in DePfa

Bank AG and DePta-Bank Europe pic by




way of a cash purchase at market value,
DePfa-Bank Europe plc will apply for a
licence under the new Irish Pfandbrief

legislation.

In the summer of 2002, the new Irish parent
company will distribute all the shares in
DePfa Bank AG to the shareholders of the
new lriéh company by way of a capital
reducticon for the purposes of a distribution
in kind. The shares in DePfa Bank AG will
be traded on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange
after the distribution in kind. The execution
‘ of the capital reduction will mark the com-
pletion of the spiit of public sector finance

activities from property finance activities.

After this stage it is planned that Catalina
Management Ltd’s 40% shareholding in
DePfa Investmentbank Ltd will be brought
into the new' irish parent company as é
contribution in kind, thus taking the
participation of the Irish parent company to
100%.

The following organisational charts illustrate the current Group structure
and the planned future structure of the public sector finance bank and the

property bank.

Current Group structure

DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG

DePfa USA Inc.
DePfa Capital Japan K.K.

Gy

Tokyo branch

Public sector finance activities

Structure after the split




The DePfa share in 2000 |

2000 was a year cﬁ scme volatility for the
DePfa share price as the markets respond-
ed to a mixture of negative and positive
news. Up until mid-2000 the share price
continued its upward climb to reach an all
time high of € 123.50 on 8th June, fuelled
by the announcement of record breaking
results for the full year 1998 and a very
good perfarmance in the first quarter of
2000. However, market sentiment became
unfavourable, notably after the half-year
2000 results, when DePfa failed to sustain
its high rate of profit growth that had
consistently been in the high double digit
range over the previous 2 years, More
difficult capital market conditions in the
second quarter forced DePfa to take a
more prudent stance in its asset/liability
management, which had been an important
source of additional earnings to its core
business activities. Also an increase in
costs as DePfa invested in personnel in key
growth areas of the public sector finance
business and higher provisions in the

- property business contributed to the

garnings slowdown.’

The split of DePfa Group

In.June 2000 the new co-speakers of the
Management Board, Gerhard Bruckermann
and Karl-Heinz Glauner, launched a radical
reorganisation of DePfa that aims to create
significant value for shareholders. Plans to
split DePfa Group into two independently
listed banking groups in 2002, eabh con-
sisting of the public sector finance and
property businesses, were announced
alongside the 9-month results. Though
reactions of investors towards the split were .
very positive the markets initially focused on

the disappointing results that included a
significant increase in provisions in the pro-
perty business as well as costs that were
parily related to preparing the new property
bank for the split. This caused the share
price to slip to a year low of € 71.80. Sub-
sequent investor roadshows could address
concerns about asset quality in the property
portfolio and buying opportunities at a
depressed price level allowed the share
price to recover sufficiently to close at

€ 77.30 by year-end, up marginally by 4.3%
for the year. When compared with other
main indices, however, it is clear that the
DePfa share heid up well in an otherwise
turbulent year in the stock markets, out-
performing the DAX ( -4.7%) and the
CDAX-Banks (+1.2%) share indices. ‘




The historical performance of the DePfa
share is very impressive. An original invest-
ment of DM 10,000 in DePfa shares made
a{ the IPO ten years ago, assuming ear-
nings from dividends and subscription
rights were also reinvested (so-called
opeération blanche}, would now be worth
DM 57,600, eguivalent to an annualised
return of 18.2%. This compares very
favourably with the performance of the DAX
index over the same period, which achieved

an average return of 16.8%.

Share price development
in 2001

The downward trend of the DePfa share
price from its peak in June 2000 was
arrested in the early months of 2001 as the
share traded well over the € 80 mark. At the
end of March 2001 the share was trading at
€ 85.50, up 7.3% on the start of the year.
This year the DePfa share has clearly
outperformed both the DAX index (-7.3%)
and DAX100 Banks index (+2.9%). There is
still, however, significant upside potential in
the share. Firstly, the full benefits of the split
for both businesses are not reflected in the
current DePfa share price. Markets should
value two focused specialised institutions
operating in distinctly separate lines of
business more highly as the current busi-
ness model. The present structure may

have acted as a deterrent to those investors

Performance of the DePfa share
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who may have been attracted to the public
sector finance or property sides of the busi-
nesé. Secondly, both businesses are also
pursuing very coherent growth strategies
where activities will be developed in areas
and regions where the two banks can
clearly excel. A higher valuation for two
separate entities has been confirmed by an
independent valuation audit commissioned
by DePfa and conducted by the UK invest-
ment bank Fox-Pitt, Kelton in November
2000 in connection with the split. Finally,
the prospect of a more favourable operating
and competitive environment in Germany

will clearly benefit DePfa.




Stock split in 2002

- A i eGR4

Subject to the approval of the Annual
General Meeting to separate DePfa into two
independent listed Companies that will
become effective in midyear 2002 current
shareholders of DePfa will receive one new
public sector finance share and one new
property bank share for every old DePfa
share. Both companies' shares will be
traded in Germany. The public sector
finance bank, which will have its Head

- Office in Dublin, will be traded on the stock
market in the form of Global Depository

_ Receipts (GDR) or similar instrument to

avoid the current high rate of stamp duty in

Ireland for share transactions. GDRs trade

and confer the same rights to shareholders

as normal shares. Given that the public
sector bank will be a non-German company
it will no longer be included in the MDAX
index, the mid-cap index for German com-
panies. The new property bank will fulfil the
criteria for inclusion in the MDAX,

Broad shareholder base

DePfa's shareholder base has become

inéreasingly diversified. Since the privatisa-

‘tion of DePfa 40% of shares have been held

by several insurance companies and private
banks within a holding company (DePfa
Holding Verwaltungsgeselischaft). Around
13% of shares are held in North America
and a good 10% held by investors in both

the UK and continental Europe ex Germany.

PE ratio high (x)

PE ratio low (x)




Strong commitment
to shareholder value

B T ORISR SR H

Since its privatisation in 1991 the market
capifalisation of DePfa has increased more
than seven times from € 400 million to

€ 3 billion. Starting off with no real advan-
tages from reserves in industrial holdings or
other non-core assets DePfa has relied
entirely on its core operating businesses for
its earnings. Thus DePfa has simply had to
be the best in its discipline and to constant-
ly develop new areas of expertise 1o in-
crease profitability. DePfa has gained the
confidence of investors with a very good
record of achieving its RoE targets within
the prescribed timeframe. In a further move
{o enhance the transparency of its accounts
for investors DePfa was the first German
bank to publish its Group accounts in
accordance with US GAAP in 1993, A
factor that has made the DePfa share parti-
cularly attractive to investors has been an
innovative management incentive scheme
{Long-term incentive plan) introduced at the
end of 1997 that links share compensation
of board members with the share price
performance compared with a peer group.
Unlike many other share compensation
packages DePfa board members can,
according to the rigorous Criteria of the
scheme, actually incur losses from varying

degrees of underperformance of the share.

Active investor relations

DePfa has been conscious to maintain an

- active and frank communications palicy

with the investor community to achieve a
fair valuation for the DePfa franchises.
DePfa conducted a series cof investor road-
shows in 2000 with the participation of
senior management following up its
earnings releases, and the announcement
of the split in late November. The DePfa
website at www.depfa.com provides
important up to the minute releases, in-
cluding press statements and earnings
reporté as well as quick and easy access

to recent presentations.




Busmess Development ZOOO

(Group F1nanc1a1 Overview)

For DePfa Group the strategic repositioning

and the task of addressing all the out-
standing problem areas in preparation for

;"t is were the overriding themes in 2000. As

afesult, Group net income for the year after
'”;deduetlo of minority interests fell by 44.0%
f0€ 1’55 m. Earnings per share fell pro-
portionately, from € 7.68 to £ 4.31. The
main developments and special factors in
individual items in the P&L account and
balance sheet are discussed below. Further
information and details can be found in the

Notes.
Profit and Loss Account

Difficult capital market conditions in 2000
resulted in a decrease in total net interest
income to € 574 m (-18.9%). Treasury
earnings made a significantly smaller
contribution of € 22 m to the overall results,
against € 118 m in the previous year. Net
commission income rose by 3.2% to
€128 m.

Although the net trading result reported in
the profit and loss account fell from € 54 m
in the previous year to € 8 m, this was due
to factors which in economic terms are to
be valued very differently. On the one hand,
this item inciudes the net trading result of
DePfa Investment Bank Ltd whose trading
activities are genuinely geared to making

P

profits. At € 25 m, this result is up slightly
on the previous year's good result. On the.

other hand, the item alsc includes interest
rate derivatives treated under US GAAP as
part of the trading portfolio. However, the
majority of these transactions are for
hedging purposes that are not aimed at
generating trading profits and therefore do
not constitute trading transactions from a
strict economic standpoint. These items
produced valuation losses of € 25 m in
2000 after valuation gains of € 26 m in
1899. This swing of € 51 m is of less
significance if one considers that in
economic terms the positions are generally
held until maturity and valuation gains and ‘
losses tend to even themselves out over the

full term. The same transactions have also
produced interest accruals which contribute
+ € 8 m to the trading result reported in the

profit and loss account.

Total revenues stood at € 710 m, down by

19.9% or € 176 m on the previous year.

Administrative expenditure increased by
27.1% to € 380 m. Approximately one third
of this increase was due to the first-time
consolidation of subsidiaries. At 35.0%, the
rise in staff costs to € 216 m was particular-
ly marked, the main factors here being the
extended scope of consolidation, provisions
for DePia's Long Term Incentive Plan and,
to a limited extent, staff recruitment. The in-

crease in other administrative expenses (up

20.2% to € 131 m) relates mainly to the
extended scope of consolidation, costs for



certain advisory services and the reclassifi-
cation of items previously reported under

other operating expenditure at DePfa IT

. Services. Combined with iower income, the

rise in administrative expenditure resulted in
a higher cost/income ratio, which was up
from 33.7% in 1999 10 53.5% in 2000. We

anticipate that the cost/income ratio will

" return to a normal level in 2001.

The balance of other operating income and
expenditure amounted to € 1 m (1898:

- € 16 m). ltems relating to measures taken
to address outstanding problems in the
German property business are reported
under other expenditure as well as under

provisions. A strategic repositioning of the

new property bank can only succeed once

Financing volume - Group

outstanding problems from the past have
been properly addressed. DePfa is planning
an exit strategy for its own property hol-
dings (bank buildings, joint ventures and
repossessed properties) that required a
revaluation of these properties. Write-
downs amounting to € 81 m were therefore
necessary in 2000 and have been charged
to other expenditure. This position also
contains a charge for restructuring amoun-
ting to € 18 m that largely relates to future
costs for advisory services and 1o the
reshuffing of companies within the Group
necessary for the split into two independent
groups. Positive earnings within other
income came from the sale of securities,
rental income and the consolidation of

special investment funds.
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Overall, the operating profit before risk
provisions fell by 42.0% to € 331 m.

The significant rise in provisions of 148.4%
to € 154 m relates to the reassessment of
risk in the lending portfolio carried out in
connection with the strategic restructuring
of DePfa Group and to specific problems in
the lending portfolic at a German branch. In
the international property business, DePfa
has not posted any loan defaults or non-
performing loans to date, and no specific

provisions have been necessary in this unit.

Provision for loan losses

............. 2000 1999

Additions to speciic charges/provisions 210 138
Y o -
T TR T e =
e o p 2
e e "
R o -

- Additions to specific charges and provisions
totalled € 210 m, a rise of 52.2% on the

_previous year. At € 46 m, releases of

specific charges and provisions were
marginally below the 1999 level. The
balance of general provisicns resulted in a
small net release of € 8 m, while recoveries
on loans written off amounted to € 2 m.
Pre-tax profit after loan loss provisions was
down 65.2% to € 177 m. The positive tax
position of € 10 m was due to the high pro-
portion of foreign earnings subject to more

favourable taxation and to write-backs of

deferred taxes set aside in Germany in the
previous year following the lowering of the
tax rate bands. Taxes on operating earnings
stood at € 19 m against income from write-

backs of deferred taxes of € 28 m.

After minorities of € 32 m (up from € 13 miin
the previous vear), net income for the year
was € 155 m, on a par with 1998, but
44.0% below the record result of 1999.

A proposal to pay an unchanged dividend
of € 1 per share will be put to the Annual

General Mesting.




Segment reporting Difficult capital market conditions led to a
e e R S e e S " decline in net interest income, down from

€ 317 mto € 221 m. We have been very

Segment reporting breaks down the p&l prudent in our asset/liability management
items, outlined above, according to operat- - and have therefore largely resisted boosting
ing units. Profitability in the public sector the Treasury resuit with additional eérnings.
finance business has been running at a high Treasury earnings on a Group-wide basis
level for many years. With an RoE of 21.9% were down from € 118 min 1999 to € 22 m
after tax 2000 was generally satisfactory. in ZOOO. Here it should be stressed that

Segment reporting by operating units

in€m Public Sector Property business ITand Consolidations/ DePfa Group
financing Property Total corporate reconciliation
. bank"? consuitancy others

Total net interest income

Balance of other
income and expenditure

of which income from
treasury activities

of which income from
payment transactions

Profit attributable to
minority interests -

" Total property business excluding the asset pool, i.e. excluding the property holdings to be hived off, but including all specific Ioan loss provisions.
2 As a result of the special factors in the tax account for 2000, no amount of the tax charge is allocated to the property bank.




these earnings derive from operations
conducted on a Group-wide scale rather
than according to individual business units
or legal entities. We have allocated signifi-
cantly more equity to the public sector
finance business with average equity rising
by 19.8% to € 770 m in preparation for the
split of the two businesses.

The adjustments for cutstanding problems
mentioned above have led to a decrease

in the results of the property business, with
net income for the year at € 5 m. The left
hand column in the table shows the results
of the property bank, net of the property
holdings which are to be hived off. it can be
seen that the disposal of these holdings will
lead to & marked improvement in earnings.
This measure will also free Qp equity, there-
by improving the return on equity for the
property division. In the IT services segment
heavy investments caused the pre-tax

result to fall from €21 mto € 9 m.

Financing

Total ‘DePfa Group financing volume in 2000
was up by € 3.1 bn to € 137.5 bn. Continu-
ing the trend of previous years, and in line
with our international orientation, non-
German lending was the driving force
behind this growth. International public
sector financing rose by 12.3% to € 64.5
bn, while public sector financing in
Germany declined by € 2.1 bn to € 47.8 bn.
Total public sector financing rose by 4.6%
to € 112.4 bn, and with a share of 81.7%
makes up the overwhelming majority of
total DePfa Group financing. 79.7% of our
public sector financing carries a risk weight-
ing of 0%, while 19.0% carries a risk
weighting of 20.0%. The high proportion of
virtually risk-free assets combined with a
broad regional diversification reflect an
excellent risk structure. Within Europe, the
breakdown of our exposure largely refiects
the total public debt of the individual coun-
tries. Outside Europe, we have increased
our financing volume in Japan significantly
to € 10.0 bn (+23.7%) as well as in Canada,
where the volume has risen by +37.9% to
€1.8bn.

DePfa Group's property finance portfolio
bears further testimony to the Group's
broad international diversification. Non-
German business accounts for € 7.9 bn, or
34.1%, of the portfalio, against 29.2% in




Financing Volume

Changes on
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the previous year. As at the year-end, the
property finance volume totalled € 23.1 bn,
a rise of 5.7%. While international financing
increased by 23.2% to € 7.9 bn, German
business volumes fell by 1.5%. It should be
noted once more that no problems in the

international property portfolio have arisen.

In the period under review, total Group
assets increased by 7.9% to € 156.4 bn.

Funding
As at the year-end, DePfa Group securitiés
outstanding totalled € 79.2 bn (-0.1%). With
a volume of € 53.7 bn or 75.4% of the total
the Pfandorief, particularly the public sector
Pfandbrief (€ 54.9 bn), was the Group’s
most important funding instrument. At

€ 35.6 bn, our Global and Jumbo Pfand-
briefe, which represent the largest and most
important funding source, are worthy of
special mention. We have continued to
expand our Global Pfandbrief prc;gramme
and in 2000, Globals #3 and #6 were in-
creased to € 5 bn each. These increases
were very well received by the capital
markets, as was the issue of our Global #7
(€ 3.5 bn), which was placed in February of
this year.

In 2000, we raised funding of € 13.8 bn,
equivalent to a decline of 28.5% and this
reflects difficult capital market conditions.

With its high standing in the capital markets

and its extensive issuance business, DePfa
ranks among the largest and most innova-

tive issuing houses in Europe.

Primary sales of Jumbo and Global Pfand-
briefe totalled € 6.9 bn for the year. DePfa
issued traditional Pfandbriefe amounting to
€ 0.1 bn. In the short term funding segment
our activities focused on the issue of
medium term notes (€ 3.5 bn). Other debt
securities (€ 2.8 bn) and borrowings

(€ 0.5 bn) completed the funding mix.
Equity

DePfa Group's liable equity capital as
defined by Article 10a of the German
Banking Act (KWG) totals € 3.3 bn, of which
€ 2.0 bn consists of Tier | capital and

€ 1.3 bn supplementary capital. The
solvency ratios under the German Banking
Act are 7.0% for Tier | capital and 10.9%
for total capital. With regard to the Bank for
International Settlement ratios, the Tier 1
capital ratio stands at 6.1% and the iotal

capital ratio at 9.8%.
Derivatives

The Group's parent company, DePfa
Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG, and DePfa-
Bank Europe plc may only enter into
derivative transactions to hedge against
interest and foreign exchange risk. DePfa

Bank AG and its subsidiary, DePfa invest-




Currency Tableau Eurobonds/MTNs

Currency

ment Bank Ltd, however, may trade in
derivatives as well as use them for hedging
purposes. In the DePfa Group as a whole,
the volume of derivative transactions
amounted tb €158.2 bn as at

31 December 2000.

Nominal amount - Interest  Year of maturity

Risk report

Risk control is a core area of competence in
the banking business and is therefore a
crucial factor for success in this competitive
field. Detailed comments on risk and risk
management can be found in the Notes in

this Annual Report.




'Outlook

In the last few years the strategic position-
ing of DéPfa Group, with its focus on clearly
defined areas of expertise and on Europe
as its domestic market, has proved very
successful. This has given a sound basis for
the Management Board and Supervisory
Board of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank
AG and DePfa Bank AG to take key
decisions regardinlg the future strategic
course of the DePfa Group. By January
2002, the internal structure of DePfa Group
will be divided into two independent com-
panies. Subject to the consent of the
extracrdinary shareholders" meeting,

the split of these two banks into two in-
dependent publicly listed banking groups
will come into force in mid-2002. This will
create a public sector finance bank with an
Irish parent company, and an international
property bank with DePfa Bank AG as its

parent company.

The restructuring and split of DePfa Group
are a logical step in our strategic specialisa-
tion. Although the split will not take effect
until 2002, major preparations will be

undertaken in the current year.

The public secter finance group will have an
Irish parent company and DePfa-Bank
Europe plc in Dublin, which is at present a
subsidiary of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbrief-

bank AG, will have a decisive role to play.
With a wide range of products, this new
banking group will be positioned aiong the
éntire value chain of public sector financial
services worldwide. Th’is étructure has an
ambit that goes far beyond the traditional
boundaries of the German Mortgage Bank
Act. Thus though DePfa Deutsche Pfand-
briefbank AG will still be a major force in the
new group it will have the character of a
specialist institution, oberating as a subsi-
diary. To put this strategic course into
effect, we intend to remove as far as pos-
sible much of the property financing off the .
books of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank
AG. DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG
will continue to pursue and expand its

current public sector finance activities, in
particular the issuance of German Pfand-
briefe.

DePfa Bank AG will, as the parent company
of the property banking group, operate
along the lines of a universal bank rathef
than of a mortgage bank. The participation
in DePfa Investment Bank Limited will be
transferred to the public secter finance

bank (DePfa-Bank Europe pic).

This bank will cater to the ever more
sophisticated needs of clients that go far
beyond traditional financing. Its activities will

be centred on professional property clients ‘ ‘
and it will continue to focus on expanding

its profitable international property finance



business as a matter of priority. Syndication
and securitisation wil enable us to build up
our customer relationships whilst also both
reducing pressure on equity and increasing

profits.

A wide ranging strategic review of our busi-
ness activities in Germany was carried out.
Our target client groubs will be fhe housing
sector, residential property developers and
investors and developers in commercial
property. Much greater importance will be
attached to the creditworthiness and pro-

Funding mix 2000

Primary sale of securities in € m - Group

fessionalism of clients and our product
range will reflect the changing needs of
clients. The organisational structure in
Germany wilt be slimmed down and

brought into fine with the reorganisation.

In view of the one-off nature of the charges
in the past financial year, we are confident
that as a Group we will again achieve the
excelient results of brevious years. Our
strategic repositioning will create substantial
value for all our stakeholders - clients,
shareholders and staff alike.

Jumbo Pfandbriefe 3,498

Traditional Pfandbriefe 56

MTN 3,526

Other bonds
2,788

i___.‘ Loans taken up 509

© DePia Group
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Management Board_declaration o

The Management Board of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefoank AG is responsible for preparing

the Group Accounts. -

The Group accounts were drawn up in accordance with the United States Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (US GAAP) and also comply with the requirements defined in
the 4th and 7th EU Directive and EU Bank Accounts Directive. The explanations provided in

DePfa Group's annual report are consistent with the Group accounts.

The DePfa Group’s comprehensive internal management and monitoring system as well as
uniform accounting and valuation principles ensure that Group accounting and reporting is

properly carried out.

In addition to a written outline of the entire organisation, DePfa Group's internal

control system comprises records of central work procedures, including detailed rules on

. arsas of competence.

The central risk management system, which complies with the requirements for an early
warning system as defined in KonTraG (Law on Corporate Control and Transparency), is the

basis for constant monitoring of counterparty exposure and market risk in the Group.

Furthermore, business processes are constantly monitored by Group Audit on the basis of
comprehensive audit plans, which check that business procedures are carried cut properly
and efficiently. With regard to the future banking supervisory regulations on capital adequacy
for operating risks, measures are already underway 1o build on our existing procedures and

organisational structure to develop a comprehensive system to identify such risks.

PwC Deutsche Revision Aktiengesellschaft Wirtschaftsprifungsgeselischaft has audited
the Group accounts prepared in accordance with US GAAP as well as the Group financial
overview for financial year 2000 and provided them with an unqualified auditors' opinion.

The Balance Sheet Committee of the Supervisory Board has discussed the Group accounts,
the Group financial overview and the Auditors' Report at length with the auditors and has

reported back to the Supervisory Board.
Wiesbaden, 12 April 2001

‘ DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG

Bruckermann Glauner




Group balance sheet at 31 December 2000

of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG W1esbaden

Assets (€ m) : '  (Notes) 31 Dec. 1999

Cash and balances with central banks - T a2
Pubhcsectordebtmstrumentsandbulls ..........................................................................................................................
which are admitted for refinance at central banks -

o andadvancestobanks (2)(4) ................................................................ 18625
[ e (3)(4) .............................................................. & 6855
ot o e g
fixed-income securities {5) 47,132

Equ itnesandothernonﬁxedmc B (5) ..................................................................... o
Pamcapatnons ................................................................................................. (6) ................................................................... o
Intangibleassets ....................................................................................... (7) ................................................................... o
Propertyande quupment ......................................................................... (8) ................................................................. S
Ot o (9) e
'#}é'pég'/‘rﬁ'é'ri'té' e (,1 O) ................................................................. 4.‘.,3.55 -
L 144,989

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Group accounts.




31 Dec. 1999

Shareholders’ equity and liabilities (€ m) (Notes)

Group retained income

Total liabilities

Contingent liabilities and
irrevocable loan commitments 34)

indemnity agreements

Irrevocable loan agreements




Group prof1t and loss account
of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG, Wiesbaden for the period 1 ]anuary—31 December 2000

1 Jan.-31 Dec. 1999

‘Jan,-31 Dec. 2000-

lending business and money market transact;ons (22)
fixed interest securities 22)
lnterest payable and similar expenditure 22)

Income from non fixed-income securities

and equity interests : (23) e aweRgE j‘1

O (24) ......................................... 182 -
G expen dlture OO U OO OO UV TSI (24) ................................................... e
o ng e (25) ......................................................... e
by o (26) .............................................................. i
Otheroperatmgmcome 253
G enera\admmlstratlveexpendlture ...................................................... (27) ..................................................................... s

Depreciation on intangible assets and
property and equipment

Other expenditure (28)

. Operating results before provision for loan losses

Provision for loan losses

income before income taxes

Income taxes

Income after taxes

Miniorty interest income

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in circulation

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Group accounts.




Group cash flow statement
. ~of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG, Wiesbaden

€m 1999
Application Source Balance
of funds  of funds of funds
inflow
Net income for the year 277
Non-cash items included in net income
and transfers to cash flow from
~operating activities
Provision for loan losses 69
Carrying value adjustments on
foreclosed assets/asset pool 24

Depreciation and write-offs on property

‘ and equipment on financial assests an
intangible assets

Gain/loss on sale of securities
available for sale

Gain/ioss on trading securities 29
Increase/decrease in other assets 82
Increase/decrease in other liabilties : 137

Cash flow from operating activities




" Group cash flow statement
of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG, Wiesbaden

1999
Application Source Balance
of funds of funds of funds

£€m

Change in other loans and advances
to banks and customers

Purchase of securities available for
sale and securities held to maturity

Sale of securities available for'sale and
held to maturity

Addition to foreclosed assets

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment and financial assets

Sale of property, equipment and
financial assets

Other amounts raised from banks and
customers

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of previous period

Cash and cash equivalents at end

of period ST e 1407 1,042

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Group accounts.




Group s‘tatemen"t?’of changes in ShaIEholdeISf. e quit y

s - . ST e :

€m Subscribed Capital Profit Group Other Comprehensive Total
capital reserve reserve retained Income
income Unrealised Accumulated
" gainsflosses  effects of
from market currency -~
valuation of  translation
securities

‘ Purchase Of trea.sury St(.)..(.:.k ........................ g ; B R o - 5
Balance at 31 December 1999 108 416 1,338 36 17 14 1,929

Sale of treasury stock 0 0 - - - - -0

Balance at 31 December 2ooo 108 416 1,490 40 79 15 1,990

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Group accounts.




‘Notes to the Group accounts

(1) General principles

The Group accounts of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG for financial year 2000 were
prepared in accordance with the United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(US GAAP). In order to provide the same information as accounts drawn up in accordance:- -
with the German Commercial Code (HGB), the Group accounts comply with the EU Bank
Accounts Directive (86/635/EEC) and the EU Group Directive (83/349/EEC).

The Group accounts are supplemented by a Group financial overview as well as an
explanation of the differences between US GAAP Group accounts and those drawn up
pursuant to German law as stipulated in section 292a of the German Commercial Code. The
Group accounts and the Group financial overview tc be entered into the commercial register
therefore conform to the 7th Directive of the European Council as well as to the Directive of
the European Council concerning company and group accounts for banks and other financial

institutions.

In principle, the amounts disclosed in these Group accounts in accordance with US GAAP are
reported in € million to ensure ease of reading. The Group accounts were converted from
Deutschmarks into Euro at the rate applicable on January 1, 1999. Where it was not
appropriate to translate the terms used in US GAAP into German for the German accounts,
the original term has been retained. A contextual explanation of the terms used is given in the
glcssary of the Annual Report. In some instances we have adjusted the figure in the previous

year to ensure comparability.

(2) Differences between the German Commercial Code (HGB)
and US GAAP

The differences between the German Commercial Code and US GAAP, which are relevant to

the Group accounts of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG, are set out below,




Securities

In accordance with SFAS 115 {Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities), securities are classified into three categories depending on the purpose for which
they were purchased: held to maturity, available for sale and trading.

Securities held to maturity are recorded at net bock value. In valuing securities available for
sale, changes in their market value are recorded in other comprehensive income without
impacting profit and loss while changes in the market value of trading securities are recorded

in the profit and loss account.

By contrast, under the German Commercial Code a valuation at the lower of cost or market is

mandatory. All changes in valuation are charged to the profit and loss account.

Repurchased debt securities

Under US GAAP, debt securities, which are repurchased, lead to a reduction of outstanding
liabilities in the balance sheet. This takes place irrespective of whether the paper is intended

for resale or not.

The difference between the cost of acquisition and the book value is reported under
income in the profit and loss account. Under the German Commercial Code, the securities

are capitalised and valued stricﬂy at the lower of cost or market.

Treasury stock

Under US-GAAP, own shares are to be deducted from equity. Differences between the
purchase price and their realisable value are taken into account in the equity and excluded
from profit and loss. The provisions of the German Commercial Code state that the difference

between the purchase price and realisable value should be capitalised and recorded in

. income in the profit and loss account.




Derivatives

Under US GAAP, all derivatives, which do not fulfil the strict criteria for hedge accounting, are
reported at fair value in the profit and loss account. This valuation is effected irrespective of
the commercial hedging effect of the transactions in question. Derivatives forming part of a
hedging relationship are reported on a basis consistent with the hedged transaction. All

derivatives valued are reported under other assets or other liabilities.

Under the German Commercial Code, the reporting of hedging relationships is subject to less
stringent requirements than under US GAAP. Neither underlying nor hedging transactions are’
valued. QOn derivatives without any hedging relationship, unrealised losses resulting from
changes in market values are recorded and charged to the profit and loss account while

unrealised gains are not reflected in the profit and loss.

Provision for loan losses

For loans within the scope of SFAS 114 (Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan),
specific charges are determined based on the present value of future cash flows discounted
at the loan's effective rate or based on the fair value of the collateral provided. Where
applicable, the market value can be used. Portfolios of smaller sized loans of a similar type
that are collectively evaluated for impairment such as private residential mortgage loans, fall
outside the scope of SFAS 114. |

General provisions are maintained to cover inherent losses in the portfolio that have not yet

been specifically identified.

Under the German Commercial Code, account is taken of potential credit risk on the basis of
historical loan loss experience, taking into account the parameters prescribed under tax

legislation.

Provision for general banking risks as permitted under section 340 f and section 340 g of the
German Commercial Code is not permissible under US GAAP. .




Property and equipment

Under US GAAP, property and equipment may not be carried at more than the historic cost
less scheduled depreciation. Extracrdinary depreciation is to be carried out if the value is
permanently impaired. Under the provisions of US GAAP, any subsequent revaluation does
not lead to any recovery, while a recovery is required under the provisions of the German

Commercial Code.

Deferred taxes

Under US GAAP, deferred taxes must be provided for on alf differences between tax reporting
and financial reporting in the Group accounts, irrespective of when the differences are netted
(temporary concept). in addition, a deferred tax asset is mandatory for tax losses carried
forward. Under the German Commercial Code, differences in results, which are likely tc be
reversed in the foreseeable future (timing concept), are supported by deferred taxes, no

deferred taxes may be created on tax losses carried forward.

Pension provisions

Uniike German law, forward-fooking assumptions such as future salary developments and
career expectations are to be taken into account under US GAAP. The basis for the valuation

is equivalent to the prevalent capital market rate.

Costs of developing computer software

Under US GAAP, the costs of developing software for use by the Group are 1o be capitalised,
while this is prohibited under the German Commercial Code.




(A) Basis for the Group Accounts

(3) Accounting and valuation principles

Consolidation

All the main subsidiaries, which fall under the legal or factual control of DePta Deutsche
Pfandbriefbank AG, are included in the Group accounts. Substantial participations are
included according to the equity method, if the Pfandbriefbank directly or indirectly holds

between 20 and 50% of the shares ("associated companies”).

The companies are consolidated according to the book value method by offsetting the

acquisition cost against the fair value of the pro-rata equity at the time of acquisition

{“purchase accounting”). Any residual positive difference is capitalised as goodwill and

amortised on a straight line basis over its expected useful life. Any residual negative difference ’

is applied as a reduction in the long term assets acquired.

Funds invested in the context of separate trust assets are treated on a basis consistent with

the consolidation of subsidiaries.

The effect of intra-Group transactions is eliminated. The necessary tax deferrals were set up

for consolidation measures affecting the profit and loss account.

The item minority interests contains the proportionate share of equity and net income for the

year attributable to minority shareholders.

Scope of consolidation

in addition to DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG, the scope of consolidation covers 76

(previous year: 43) domestic and international supsidiaries as well as 4 {previous year: 2)

associated companies included at equity in accordance with the book value method. The

expansion in the scope of consolidation is primarily attributable to companies that were

previously not consolidated for materiality reasons and is connected with the DePfa Group’s ‘
52 new strategic focus. This relates, in particular, to a number of property companies that were

included in financial year 2000. In addition, the following companies, amongst others, were



consolidated for the first time:

Deutsche Structured Finance GmbH, Frankfurt/Main,
DePfa Funding LLC, Wilmington, Delaware, USA,

DePfa Funding Trust, Wilmington, Delaware, USA

and DePfa Hypotheken-Management GmbH, Mannheim.

in total, the cost of acquisition for newly acquired subsidiaries amounted to € 14 m.

In the course of the acquisition of DSF GmbH, the DePfa Group expanded its business

activity to include the setting up and sale of leasing funds.

The complete list of shareholdings under section 313 para. 2 of the German Commercial

Code is shown in Section {I).

Loans

Loans to banks and customers are reported at net book value, net of specific provisions.
Discounts or premiums and loan origination fees are deferred over the term of the loan and

recorded under net interest income.

Accrued interest is calculated on a daily basis. Interest income is no longer recorded, if

irrespective of the legal position, the inflow of interest is no longer deemed likely.

Loans are classified as impaired (non-performing), if it can no longer be assumed that all
contractually agreed payments will be made. Payments collected on impaired loans are
reported as fees or interest income for any such unpaid amounts, thereafter payments are

applied against the loan principal cutstanding.




Provision for loan losses

Throughout the Group, account is taken of credit risks in German and international lending
operations in the form of specific charges and provisions set up on the basis of standard
valuation methods amounting to the level of the expected losses. Potential risks are covered

by general provisions.

Specific provisions

These are based on the standard procedures for the DePfa Group which take into account
the financial position of the borrower, the value and marketability of the collateral provided on

the one hand and the industry related and the macro economic parameters of the loan _
portfolio on the other. o ‘

For loans secured on property, the specific charges are based on the fair value of the

collateral.

Specific provisions are released as soon as the grounds for the impairment no longer apply.
Loans are charged off, if the probability of the loan not being repaid borders on certainty.

General charges

General charges are set up for potential credit risks in the portfolio for which the refated loan
has not been identified as impaired by the balance sheet date. The regular evaluation of the
adequacy of the general provisions for Ioan losses is based on DePfa Group's past loan loss
experience. This includes both the development of the loan portfolio as well as the general

! financial position of borrowers and overall economic factors,




Securities -

In accordance with the purpose of their purchase and intended holding period, securities are
classified into three categories — held to maturity, available for sale and trading. Profits and
losses on disposal are calculated with reference to average cost. Premiums or discounts on

purchase are deferred over the maturity period and recorded under interest.

Securities assigned under repo transactions continue to be recorded in the baiance sheet
where they meet the criteria of FAS 140. Conversely, borrowed securities are only to be
recorded under securities if they are treated as a purchase. In principle, repo transactions and
pledges effected within DePfa Group do not lead to the assignor losing his power of disposal
because of the structure of the agreements. Transactions of this kind are concluded using

standard framework agreements including the provision of collateral.

Securities held to maturity

Securities which the Bank intends to hold until maturity are classified as held to maturity and

carried at amortised cost.

Securities available for sale

These are securities, which the Bank intends to hold for indefinite periods of time or which are
held for liquidity management purposes. Securities, which are availabie for sale and any
derivatives hedging such securities are carried at fair values. Unrealised gains and losses
resufting from changes in fair value are recorded in other comprehensive income, net of

deferred taxes.




Trading securities

Securities that are to be sold in the short term are carried at fair values in the balance shest.
Resulting realised and unrealised gains or losses are recorded in trading results in the profit

and loss account.
Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments as hedging transactions

The majority of the derivative transactions carried out by DePfa Group are for the purposes of
reducing risk. These refer in particular to interest rate swaps, interest currency swaps, interest ‘
rate options and futures.

Most of the derivatives can be accounted for as hedges under US GAAP. These are
derivatives which are allocated to individual assets or liabilities and are reported on a basis
consistent with the matched underlying transaction. Accordingly the Bank records such
derivatives using either of the following methods as appropriate:

Accrual method

Net interest settlement arising from the derivative contract is recognised in the same way
as the income or expenditure from the underlying transaction. Premiums paid or received
are reported in the profit and loss account as income or expenditure over the term of the
derivative. Accruals are recorded under accrued interest, prepayments and accrued

income or accrued interest, accruals and deferred income.

Fair value method

When a derivative is used to hedge risks associated with securities available for sale, the
related derivative contract is recorded at fair value to match the underlying accounting
treatment of the security available for sale. Changes in the fair values of the derivatives are

reported in the same way as changes in the fair values of the underlying transactions net ‘

of deferred tax under other comprehensive income.



The Group manages its exposure to interest rate risk using various scenario methods and

enters into derivative contracts to reduce exposure. The commercial hedging effect of these
transactions is not sufficient in all cases to fulfil all of the US GAAP accounting criteria to
qualify for hedge accounting and these derivatives are thersfore accounted for as trading

activities and carried at fair value.

Hedging relationships which cease 1o be effective or are terminated by the sale of the
underlying transaction or derivative are cancelled. The residual derivative is recorded as a
trading transaction from this point in time and valued at fair value. '

ff the underlying' asset or liability remains in the portfolio, the amount resulting from

cancellation of the derivative is written back to income or expenditure over the remaining term

of the original underlying asset or liability.

Derivatives classified as trading activities

Some of the derivatives do not fulfil detailed hedge accounting criteria under US GAAP.
irrespective of its hedging effect, this portion of the derivatives portfelic is valued as trading

transactions under other assets or liabiities and recognised as income.

The fair values are estimated using pricing models or discounted cash flows.

Participations

Equity investments are carried at the lower of cost or fair value. Account is taken of perma-

nent reductions in value through write-downs.




Intangible assets

Goodwill

Intangible assets comprise goodwill arising on the acquisition of undertakings. Goodwill
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the

net assets at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions is amortised on a straight line basis over the expected useful
life of between four and ten years. In determining the period of amortisation, the Group
considers the period over which benefits are to be received from the shareholding in each

case. The value and amortisation period is reviewed annually.

Costs of developing IT software
DePfa Group develops software for in-house use which is capitalised in accordance

with SOP 98-1, whereby certain expenditure from the project development phase is to be

capitalised and written off over the estimated useful life.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at the cost of acquisition or manufacture, less scheduled

depreciation.




Estimated useful life in years

Buildings 25-50
IT equipment 3-5
Bought-in software 3

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10
Machinery and equipment E 5
Vehicle fleet 5

Depreciation is carried out over the estimated useful lives of the relevant assets: the useful
life of an asset is determined by taking into account the physical useful life, technical
obsolescence as well as other limitations. If the regular review of the value shows a need for
depreciation, this is recorded immediately as extraordinary depreciation. For leasehold
improverments, the term of the lease taking into account extension options is used as the

pasis if it is shorter than the usual useful life.

‘For items under property and equipment, subsequent costs of acquisition or manufacture are
capitalised where an additional economic benefit arises. Maintenance expenditure on property

and equipment is fully charged to expenditure in the year it is incurred.

Leasing

DePfa Group's lease contracts are assessed according to the distribution of economic risks
and rewards of the lease asset between lessor and lessee. As lessee, DePfa Group uses
property and equipment on the basis of capital leases or operating leases. As lessor, DePfa
Group rents out land and buildings under cperating leases. Rents under leases where the
risks and rewards associated with the leased item remain with the lessor (operating leases)
are treated by the lessee as rent payable. If DePfa Group is the lessor, the income achieved is

reported under other income.




Foreclosed assets

Properties intended for sale in the short term, which are acquired to avoid losses arising from
loans, are reported under other assets (foreclosed assets). These are stated at the lower of
cost or fair value based on surveys by accredited experts using the gross rental method.
Expenditure relating to such properties is reported in the profit and loss account under other
expenditure. Assets which were acquired in settiement of loans and subseguently used by the

Bank itself or to achieve income are reported under property and equipment or other assets.

Land in the property portfolio

As part of the reorganisation of DePfa Group, it is planned amongst other things to assign

property to a subsidiary. These properties, which were previously carried as property and .
equipment, foreclosed assets or other assets, are reported as an independent portfolio (asset

pool) under other assets as at 31 December 2000.

They were valued at the lower of book or fair value at the transfer date.

Financing costs

Financing costs are capitalised in accordance with the requirements of FAS 34 for the period
in which assets are produced with an interest rate of 6% being used as a basis.




Liabilities

Liabilities are stated at net repayment amounts and the difference between this and the
nominal value is written back pro-rata temporis and recorded as interest expenditure.
Registered paper is reported together with bearer debentures under securitised liabilities.

Provisions

Provisions are set aside for commitments to third parties, if utilisation is probable and the

anticipated amount of the commitment can be reasonably estimated.

Pensions and similar obligations

Primarily, DePfa Group grants pension commitments on the basis of defined benefits and to a
minor extent on the basis of contribution-related benefits. DePfa Group takes account of the
defined benefit pension cbligations through the creation of provisions. Benefits under the
pension scheme are based on employees’ pensionable income in the last year of their
employment and on the total pensionable years' service within the Group at the time of

retirement.

in 2000, DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG and DePfa Bank AG introduced a fund based
occupational pension scheme where the Banks invest contributions in a fund. Benefits from
the unit linked plan are dependent on contributions made by the employer and the income

achieved by the fund with a minimum return being guaranteed by the Banks.

Staff can make their own additional contributions by means of a salary sacrifice. The provision
for pensions and similar obligations is valued on the basis of the projected unit credit method
prescribed under US GAAP. This calculation takes into account the net present value of the

pension entitlements and the interest expenditure to be calculated on this amount.




Deferred taxes

Under US GAAPR, deferred taxes are recorded to cover temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of individua! assets and ligbilities for financial reporting and those for tax
reporting purposes. Pursuant to this approach, all differences are recorded, irrespective of
their origin, if they will result in tax credits or tax charges in future. Differences, which when
written back at a later date will result in a higher tax charge, are covered by deferred tax
liabilities; those which when written back resuit in a tax credit are covered by deferred tax
assets. In addition, deferred tax assets are created on losses carried forward for tax
purposes. The value of capitalised tax assets is reviewéd on a regular basis and value

adjustments made if applicable.

Deferred taxes are calculated at local tax rates, which under the current circumstances may
be expected to apply when the difference is recovered or settled. Deferred taxes are adjusted

in the event of legally promuigated changes in tax rates.

Foreign currency transiation

In principle, assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as well as cash

transactions not yet settled at the balance sheet date are translated into Euro at the spot rate
at the balance sheet date. Forward transactions not yet settied are valued at the forward rate.
Income and expenditure resulting from currency translation are reflected in other operating '

income.

The accounts of foreign subsidiaries with functional currencies other than the euro are
translated according to the current rate method. Balance shest items are translated at current

rates at the balance sheet date, income and expenditure are translated at annual average

rates. Shareholders’ equity is translated at historic rates. Transiation differences resulting from

foreign currency translation are recorded in other comprehensive income without affecting net

income.




Earnings per share

When calculating earnings per share under SFAS 128, the impact of rights which can be con-
verted into equity is to be taken into account. In the event of such impact, two indicators are
to be given for earnings per share. This impact is not taken into account in the “earnings per
share” figure; Group net income is divided by the weighted average number of shares. There

has been no dilution of earnings per share.

Estimates

Certain estimates and assumptions are made for the preparation of the Group accounts.
These affect the reported amounts of assets and ligbiiities and contingent liabilities as at the
balance sheet date and the reported amounts of income and expenditure during the reporting

period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

New accounting principles under US GAAP

FAS 140 published in October 2000 regutates the reporting of the transfer and servicing of
financial assets and the reporting of the transfer of financial tiabilities and completely replaces
FAS 125, which was in force until that date. in principle, additional statements by DePfa
Group in the Notes on repo transactions and pledges of securities relate to the new rules of
FAS 140. First-time application of FAS 140 is also prescribed in part for financial years which
end after 15 December 2000,

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS 133
{Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities) on the reporting of derivative
financial instruments and hedging activities, which was supplemented by SFAS 137 and 138.
The statement requires that all derivative financial instruments be recorded and that the .
valuation is carried out at fair value. Depending on the use of the derivative and on

compliance with the prerequisites for hedge accounting, gains and losses from changes in fair




value of derivative financial instruments aré recorded undser current earnings in the profit and

loss account of under other comprehensive net income without affecting net income. The
adoption of this staternent is cbligatory for financial years beginning after 15 June 2000. The
concept and [T requirements for the adeption in financial year 2001 have been put in place in

the framework of a project at DePfa Group.




‘(B) Notes to the Group balance sheet | R

(1) Cash and balances with central banks

€m

Cash on hand

Central bank balances

Drawing restrictions of € 188 miflion (1999: € 100 million) apply due to minimum reserve

obligations.

(2) Loans and advances to banks

31 Dec. 1992

31 Dec. 2000,

of which repayable on demand LEL e 2,1  3

(3) Loans to customers

31 Dec. 1999

21,853

54,8513

Public sector loans

Other loans

76,855




(4) Provision for loan losses

The movernent in the provisions and charges for loan losses for on-balance sheet lending business is as follows:

€m ) Specific General Total
provisions

Provision for loan losses
used for intended purpose

Provision for foan losses written back
to the profit and loss account

There are atso provisions for lending operations amounting to € 16 m (1999: € 23 m).

After offsetting amounts received on losses previously charged off amountingto €2 m
(1999: € 7 m), additions to and write backs from the provision for loan iosses reporied
in the profit and loss account resulted in a charge to income for loan losses of € 154 m
(1999: € 62 m).

The additions and amounts used for the intended purpose include direct write-offs of
€3m(1999: € 1 m).

No provisions were set up for country risks in 1999 and 2000.

The loss of interest income from non accrual loans amounted to € 7 m in 2000
(1998: £ 18 m). The book value of non accrual loans amounted to € 120 m
(1999: € 144 m).




Impaired loans break down as follows:

£€m 31 Dec. 1999

impaired loans with provision for loan losses . tnoaeter 1317
Impaired loans without provision for loan losses 7.l g4t 13
Tota| ........................................................................................................ 1 ,430
Provision for loan losses on impaired loans . ciiioessr 525
Annual average of impaired loans B 7 1,466
m terest ‘ mcome recogms . d On ........................................................................
impaired toans during the year S

As at the balance sheet date, loans which, due to ﬁnandial difficulties on the part of the
borrower, have been rescheduled to ensure the planned settlement of the contract totalled
€ 142 m (1999: € 100 m) (troubled debt restructuring).

(5) Securities

DePfa Group has classified its securities in the following three categories:

731 Dec. 2000 31 Dec. 1999

Available for sale ‘

i’rading




Proceeds from the sale of securities available for sale amounted to € 12,579 m
(1999: £ 14,744 m, of which € 50 m (1999: € 18 m) is attributable to realised gains and
€10 m (1999: € 47 m) to realised losses.

Unrealised losses on trading securities amounted to € 3 m {(1999: € 1 m unrealised gains) in
2000.

The following schedule presents the values of securities at the year-end according to
the contractual residual maturities. Actual residual maturities may differ from agreed residual -
maturities, if debtors are entitled to cancel their debt with or without paying an early

redemption fee and repay their debt in advance.

Book Value Fair Value
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eCUriﬁes

. . e S
Debt securities and other fixed-incom

i ains @n
Net book value, fair value and unrealised 9

presented as follows:

€m

Central government and
other pubtic sector bonds

Central government and
other public sector bonds

Central government and
other public sector bonds

d losses for the Group's debt securities and other fixed interest securities are

31 December 1999

Net Unreal- ~ Unreal- Fair
book ised ised value
value gains . losses

687 - 3 6584
1,221 80 - 1,281

100 - g7 3
2,008 80 100 1,968
6,550 5 - 6,555
1,323 - 1 1,322

S 7873 .............. 5 .................. 1 ......... 7877
9,881 65 101 9,845
2,158 22 11 2,169




31 December 1999

€m
Unreal-  Unreal- Fair
ised ised value

gains losses

Central government and

other public sector bonds 1,405 347 25,986
. I_ocalgovemment R e i L o r—— 1625
o orporatebonds ............................................................... s sl
Otherbondsandnotes ....................................................... o S
Totalfore|gn|ssuers ...................................................... 1409372 ........ 5 7908
T 1446 .............. e 37231
o T
Tradmgsecuntles ........................................................................................................
________ g orelgmssuers e e
SRS gov B s g

- other public sector bonds 1 - 20
. Totalfore|gmssuers .................................................... R S
e B T e e T J sy
Grandtotal(A+B) ........................................................ 1’512537 ......... " 7096

of which negotiable on the stock
exchange

of which listed on the stock
exchange




The movement on debt securities held for investment purposes was as follows:

Book value Net book value

The book value of these debt securities held for investment purposes includes unamortised

premiums/discounts of € 71 m (1998: € 407 m).

Equities and other non-fixed income securities

Net book value, fair value and unrealised gains and losses for equities and other non fixed-

income securities are presented as follows:

€m 31 December 1999
Net Unreal- Unreal- Fair
book ised ised value
value gains losses
Tradmg e s S TR T e e S e G IR R 1 T e 1
Avallableforsale ................................ 395 .............. 166 ................. R 561
Total ...................................................... 396 ............. 166 ............... SRR 562 .
...................................................................... 1 8

of which marketable securities
of which listed securities




. The movement in equities and cther non fixed-income securities held for investment purposes —- -

was as follows:

€m Book value Net book value

At1JanuaryZOOO ............................................................................................ o
Exchange adjus e L
T R
Dlsposals ..................................................................................................................... T
Redemptxon o L
e g
Profnond|3posal T
- valuatxon .............................................................................................................. e

At 31 December 2000 . 344 309

Repurchase agreements and pledges

As at 31 December 2000, the book value of the assets sold under repurchase agreements
and reported in the balance sheet ameunted to € 21.1 billion (1999: € 15.7 billion), of which
£ 11 billion (1999: £ 6.0 billion) was attributable to securities pledged under open market
transactions with the European Central Bank and € 10.1 billion (1993: € 9.7 billion) to -

securities sold under repurchase agreements.

(6) Participations

€m Cost Amortisation Book values
1 Jan. Addi- Dis- 31 Dec. Current Cumu- 31 Dec. 31 Dec.
2000 tions posals 2000 year lative 2000 1299
S aﬁilié{éé ............................................................................................................. e, R A
companies 21 68 11 78 19 33 45 7
Participations 299 18 1 316 3 3 313 295

of which valued at equity
€35m(1999: €29 mJ




(7) Intangible assets

intangible assets comprise mainly goodwill as well as software developed in-house.
Since the 1899 financial year, the costs of developing computer software in-house have been

capitalised under SOP 98-1.

Transfers

Depreciation charge

Book values

£€m :
1 Jan

2000

Software 16
Goodwill 49
Intangible assets 65

Cost

Addi- Dis-
tions posals
3 0

14 1

17 1

31 Dec.  Current Cumu-
2000 year lative

13 2 7

62 8 18

75 10 25

(8) Property and equipment

This item shows land and buildings used by the Group. Financing costs of € 2 m for a new

office building have been capitalised.

Standard software used by Group companies is reported under fixtures and fittings.

€ million

Transfers

Depreciation charge

1 Jan

2000
Land and property 256
Fixtures and fittings 124

- of which leased items
£ 9 million {(1899: € 4 million)

Cost

Addi- Dis-

tions posals

95 63

32 5
127 68 .

31 Dec. Current Cumu-
2000 year lative
177 9 42

146 14 104

323 23 146

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2000 1999

6 13

44 28

50 41

Book value

31 Dec. 31 Dec.

2000 199
135 201

42 30

177 231




Transfers comprise land and buildings at a cost of € 38 m, Which were reclassified under

‘Other assets’ as a result of a planned sale in the short term.

(9) Other assets

This item comprises the following:

As a result of DePfa Group’s new strategic course all land and property intended for transfer

to a property company were aggregated in a single portfolio. Based on a detailed schedule
DePfa Group plans to sell these in the short term, latest by 2002. The valuation of this
portfolio resulted in a write-down from the time of the transfer totalling € 73 m during the
reporting 'year, which has been charged to ‘Other expenditure’. Financing costs of € 2 m for

properties under construction were capitalised.

As at 31 December 2000 value adjustments on foreclosed assets amounted to € 177 m
(1898 € 188 m); of this € 37 m relates to properties that were transferred to the asset pool.

Other assets comprise mainly non-banking receivables and clearing accounts, where the
increase is primarily due to the extension in the scope of consolidation, as well as tax recovery

claims.




(10) Prepayments and accrued income

31 Dec. 1999

.31 Des. 2000

€m

Pro-rata interest

(11) Deposits by banks
€m | 31 Dec. 1999
‘ T e

Deposns BSOSO UU PSR UR P PRRUP
Other liabilities

Other liabilities

They comprise mainly foans taken up, repayment obligations under repo transactions and

other liabilities from syndicate and lending transactions.

3 “Dei:k;.' 2000 - 31 Dec. 1999

SavmngepOSIts e e e S L B R

with agreed notice period of three months

Other liabilities
Net deferred items ‘

Total




Other liabilities

This item includes mainly loans taken up and other liabilities from issuing and lending

activities.

(13) Securitised liabilities

Interest rates between 2.75% and 8.25%,
maturity up to 2008

- of which registered mortgage Pfandbriefe
2,113 (1999: 2,143)

56,818

Interest rates between 2.625% and 8.75%,
maturity up to 2019

- of which registered public sector pfandbriefe
3,217 (1899: 3,569)

17,296

Interest rates between 0.01% and 18.0%,
maturity up to 2019

5852

Interest rates between 0.055% and 7.26%,
maturity up to 2001

Interest rates and maturities refer to December 31, 2000.




Nominal amount
31 Dec. 1999

< 3 months 8,188
3months—1year ....................................................................... = 8800
e 1_2years 12598
2—3years ............................................................................................ 9243
R years ....................................................................................... 101 e
e years ........................................................................................... 8006 .
e 5years ........................................................................................ 27986

On the balance sheet date, assets (nominal volume) of € 62.2 billion (1999: € 63.7 billion)
were entered in the trustee register as collateral for Pfandbriefe. Reacquired securities amoun-

~ ting to € 1.9 billion (1998: € 1.1 billion) were deducted from the issue volume.

(14) Other liabilities

This item comprises:

31 Dec. 1999
1,218
420

Sundry liabilities mainly includes adjustment and deferred amounts from financial instruments,
iiabilities from taxes not related to income which has not yet been paid as well as trade

creditors.




(15) Accruals and deferred items

This item comprises the following: .

Pensions and similar obligations
Pension plans include commitments to the majority of employees in the Group.

Pension commitments mainly relate to commitments from the éompany agreement on the
employee pension scheme and, in individual cases, to special commitments which are
covered by provisions. The provisions were essentially set aside for DePfa Deutsche Pfand-
briefoank AG, DePfa Bank AG and DePfa IT Services AG.

Pension costs in financial year 2000 amounting to € 11 m (1999: € 11 m) consist of the
increase in costs due to increasing years of service and from adjustments which refer to

changes in actuarial assumptions.

These calculations are based on a discount rate of 6.25% (1999: 6.0%), an average salary

increase rate of 2.5% (1999: 2.5%) and a periodic adjustment of 2.5% (1999: 2.5%) as well




as an inflation rate of 2% (1999: 2%). Actuarial calculations are performed annually. The

calculations are carried out using the new Heubeck tables of 1998.

Composition of pension expenditure:

Movement in pension obligations:

Benefit obligation as at 1 January taking future salary
increases into account (PBO)
Service cost (expenditure for benefits earned during the year)

Benefit obligation as at 31 December taking future salary increases into

account (PBO)

There are no charges on individual assets to cover pension obligations.




Tax provisions and deferred taxes

The Group's income taxes refer to Germany and other countries as follows:

1999

The table below shows the reconciliation of the income taxes derived from net income for the

year before taxes to the staterhent of actual income taxes. The current total tax rate of 53% ‘
(1999: 53%}) is used to dstermine the expected tax expenditure for 2000. Valuation

differences which when written back in the future will impact con tax were determined on the

basis of the tax rates effective from 2001.

Deferred taxes from previous years are also revalued at future tax rates and the resultant profit

or loss taken to the profit and loss account.

Income taxes derived from net income for
the year before taxes

Change in the tax rate for domestic
deferred taxes

Reduction of corporation tax rate
due to distribution

Actual income taxes incurred

Tax expenditure amounting to € 20 m in respect of deferred taxes was offset against

shareholders’ equity without any effect on income.



Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities result from differences in the values stated for

the following items on the balance sheet:

Accrued interest and prepayments
and accrued inccme

Liabilities 2

Secunnsed nabnmes .................................................................................................... a .
Pension provisions ” 14
5 therprov!s|ons .................................................................................... 28
Lossescamedforward e et et e e e e e o
A Ccmed mterest and accrua! S and .............................................................................................. -
deferred income 7 10

Defenedtaxassets ..................................................... - .................. 444 .......... S 481

Loans and advances

Securities
Participations

Property and equipment

Derivatives

Intangible assets

Other assets

Accrued interest and prepayments and
accrued income

Pension provisions

Other provisions

Other liabilities

Accrued interest and accruals and
deferred income




Deferred faxes from tax losses carried forward can be used without restriction.

After netting, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

31 Dec. 1999

Deferred tax liabilities

Liabilities to and claims on the same tax authority are reported net.

Other provisions

31 Dec. 1999

63
23
86

(17) Hybrid capital

Hybrid capital comprises capital components, which althcugh commercially and under
supervisory banking regulations can be viewed as shareholders’ equity, are not reported in the

balance sheet as sharehalders' equity. Hybrid capital breaks down as follows:

Em : %7 21 Dec. 2000 31 Dec. 1999

447

=)

1,311

Subordinated liabilities

At the balance sheet date, the following individual items exceeded 10% of the total amount of

subordinated liabilities:




Year  Nominal amount "~ lssuer Currency Interest Due on
€ million in %

R oy L B B L iy e P
e g T L dbnefbankAG ................... VR e o 2002
e o T g e ae 07012003
In the event of insolvency or liquidation, the subordinated principal and interest receivable on
the bonds only has to be paid back after satisfaction of all creditors whose receivables are not
subordinated. Receivables from bonds may not be offset against receivables of the debtor.
Neither the creditor nor the debtor is entitled to cancel. Interest expenditure on subordinated
liabilities amounted to € 41 miflion.
Repurchased subordinated own debt securities amounting to € 1 million (1999: € 2 million) are
recognised under hybrid capital.
Participation certificates
The participation certificates issued comply with the regulations stipulated in Section 10 §
5 KWG and consist of the following issues:

Year  Nominal amount Issuer Currency Interest Due on

£€m in %
e e P S G e s

e, o s T e S 650031122008
e, g Cn G e e T e ey
R s L o DeutschePfandbnefbankAG ................... EUR P 31122009
! gy g S T s
et g Sy o S s Sy eets
) e G o VR s
SO g g DePfaBankAG .................. DM680031122007

Interest expenditure for participation certificates amounted to € 67 mitlion.




Contributions by silent partners

There is a silent contribution of € 51 m at subsidiary DePfa Bank AG. The silent partner
participates in potential losses of the Bank, and also receives a profit distribution of 2% above
the shareholders dividend, with a minimum, however, of 8% and a maximum of 12%.

Both parties are entitled to cancel the agreement at the year-end with 3 years notice. The
distribution for 2000 amounted to € & million.

(18) Shareholders’ equity

Share capital

At 31 December 2000, the share capital of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG amounted to
€ 108 m. It consists of 36,000,000 unit shares, which each carry one vote. All shares are

publicly held.

At 31 December 2000 DePfa Holding Verwaltungsgeselischaft mit beschrénkter Haftung,
Frankfurt/Main, had a shareholding of 40% in DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG.

Minority interests

During financial year 2000, DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG issued preference shares
amounting to € 220 m via a US subsidiary. These shares can only be cancelled by the issuer
and only after a period of 5 years, which is May 2005 at the earliest and at nominal vaiue.
These shares carry a non-cumulative variable interest rate which is determined in line with

Euribor. The interest expenditure amounted to € 8 m.




Authorised capital

Year in which
resolution
passed

Original
amount

20,451,675.25

Utilisation
in the
reporting year

Year in which
resolution
passed

Conditional capital

Original
~amount

Utilisation
in the
reporting year

Amount still Time limit ' Note
available
£
12,782,297.03 25.06.2002 Authorised capital |
12,782,297.03 25.08.2002 Authorised capital ll; partial
exclusion of shareholders’
subscription rights possible
20,451,675.25 25.06.2002 Authorised capital Iif; Exclusion
of shareholders’ subscription
rights possible in the event of capital
increase through contributions
in kind to acquire participations
Amount

still available

The conditional capital increase serves to grant conversion or option rights to the holders of

convertible bonds or option bonds which may be issued up until 16 June 2004 by the Bank

or by a directly or indirectly majority owned company of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG.

The total amount of debt securities may not exceed a nominal amount of € 600 m, or a

nominal amount of € 2 bilion in the event of the issue of lower interest bearing or long debt

securities without a current return. The debt securities may be issued in Euro or in the

corresponding equivalent value of the legal currency of an OECD country.

As at the reporting date no convertible bonds or option bonds had been issued.

For financial year 1898, a dividend of € 1 per share was paid by DePfa Deutsche Pfandbrief-

bank AG.




Acquisition of own shares

DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG has been authorised by the General Mesting on 20 June
2000 to purchase own shares pursuant to section 71 para. 1 no. 7 AktG for the purpose of
securities trading up until 19 December 2001. The portfolio of shares to be acquired for this

purpose may not exceed 5% of the share capital of the Bank at the end of any day.

Furthermore, DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG was authorised to purchase own shares
pursuant to section 71 para 1. no. 8 AktG up to a volume of 10% of the share capital for
purposes other than securities trading. Exclusion of sharehoiders' subscription rights is

possible under certain circumstances.

On the balance sheet date, 350,735 own shares were provided as security for the

Management Board's Long Term Incentive Programme. The amount of share capital

attributable to the pledged treasury stock amounts to € 1,052,205.

Profit reserves

Profit reserves comprise the following.




Components of other comprehensive income

The components of other comprehensive income are as follows:

€m 1999
Before Tax Net
taxes effect

Gain/loss from the recognition of
securities at fair values:




(19) Classification of remaining maturities

Remaining maturities

Balance sheet item as at Upto3 Between3 Maturingin  Between 1 After 5 Undated
31 Dec. 2000 months months and the following year and years
1 year year 5 years
€m €m €m €m €m €m
Loans and advances 1o banks 3.931 1,663 -
Loans to customers 39,060 29,356 1

Debt securities and other
fixed interest securities

Savings deposits subject
to agreed notice period

Debt securities issued

Other securitised liabilities




(20) Trust business

The table below shows the volume of trust transactions:

Loans and advances to banks

Loans to customers

Shares and other non fixed
interest securities

Other assets

(21) Assets and liabilities in foreign currency

The total amount of assets in foreign currencies was the equivalent of € 24.1 billion at the
balance sheet date, liabilities in foreign currencies totalled € 25.3 billion. Aimost ail the

difference was hedged in full by forward exchange contracts and currency swaps.




(C) Explanatlons to the Group proflt g
and loss account - @

—

(22) Total net interest income

Interest income from lending business and money
market transactions

Other bonds

Borrowings

Hybrid capital

Other banking transactions

(23) Income from non fixed-income securities
and equity interests

1999

Current income from shares and other non
fixed interest securities

Current income from holdmgs in affiliates

Total




(24) Net commission income

1999

Commission mcome from bankmg transact:ons

Commnssron expendlture from bankmg transactlons

Commnssnon income from lT services

Other commxssron income

Other commxssron expendlture

IT services for the housing industry and trust asset management were provided to third
parties. Other commission income and expenditure relates particularly to Deutsche Structured

Finance GmbH which was acguired in 2000.

(25) Tradmg result

The securities trading result comprises the gains and losses from securities trading
(€ 17 m), derivatives trading (€ 8 m), as well as the gains and losses from derivatives in

hedging transactions which do not fulfil the hedging requirements (€ -25 m).

(26) Other income

Other income includes:

€m
Securmes tradlng result

Other operatmg income

Other operating income includes property income.




(27) Administrative expenditure

€m 1999

R T EE——
e e S S e
-1 11 o o
b S G

€11m (1999: € 11 m)

Other administrative expenditure ~ saceeiioemagy 109
B e e

This item includes expenditure for software development amounting 1o € 7 million.

(28) Other expenditure

Other expenditure comprises the following:

Other operating expenditure includes in particular, depreciation of property earmarked for sale

(asset pool}, exchange losses and a restructuring provision. The latter item (€ 18m) was set
aside in connection with preparations for transferring the asset pool and € 2 m was set aside

mainly for advisory fees.

(29) Income taxes

Please refer to the explanation given for the item tax provisions and deferred taxes (Note 16)
in the notes to the Group accounts. ’ ‘




(D) Reporting on financial instruments

in addition to cash and balances with central banks, US GAAP defines financial instruments

as essentially contracts which result in an obligation to deliver cash or a right to receive cash.

Te reduce counterparty exposure, DePfa Group requires the provision of suitable collateral.
Collateral essentially comprises charges on property as well as securities provided under repo

transagtions.

(30) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which a financial instrument could be
exchanged in transactions between two independent and competent parties at the reported
balance sheet date. Fair values are determined as at the reported balance sheet date on the
basis of the market information available at that date and using the calculation methods
‘ outlined below which are based on certain assumptions. In view of varying factors, the values
calculated may differ from the fair values later realised in the market. For financial instruments
that are traded in well-functioning markets, the quoted market price or market value has been
used in determining the fair value. For other financial instruments, fair values are estimated

using internal valuation models, particularly the net present value method.
A description of how the values for different financial instruments are determined is as follows:

Cash and balances with central banks, accrued interest, assets and liabilities with a residual
maturity of less than one year, variable rate financial instruments and irrevocable loan
commitments and contingent liabilities are carried at book value or nominal value. For
securities and derivatives in the trading portfolio, fair value equates to the bock value which is
determined on a mark-to-market basis. For securities, derivatives and quoted debt instru-
ments traded on the stock exchanges, reference is made to quoted market prices. For all
other receivables and liabilities, the forecast future cash flows have been discounted to

present values, using current interest rates.

The fair values of interest rate and interest rate-currency swap agreements as well as of

interest rate futures are determined on the basis of discounted future cash flows, using




Assets (€ m)

current interest rates applicable to the remaining maturities of the financial instruments. The
fair value of forward exchange transactions is determined on the basis of current forward
rates of similar contracts. Options are valued by means of price guotations or accepted
models for the determination of option prices. Futures are reported at current stock market
prices.

31 Dec. 1999
Book value Fair value

47,096

(31) Risk concentrations in the credit business

Default risk concentrations (credit risk concentratibns) may arise from business relationships
with groups of barrowers having similar characteristics and whose ability to redeem debts
equally depends on the change in specific economic conditions. Credit risks within the Group
are managed by establishing limits for each borrower, requesting appropriate collateral and

applying a standard lending policy.




The Group’s credit business focuses on public secter financing and property financing. Within

these segments, the portfolio does not show any particular dependence on sectors. In
addition, there were no material large exposures at 31 December 2000 resuiting in a

concentration of assets or liabilities.

The structure of the Group's total loan and money market portfolio at 31 December 2000 is

as follows:

€m Accounts receivable  Repo transactions Guarantees Total
Banks 12310 .................................... 2 74 ........................................ o 12584
Compamesandpnvatemd,v,duajs ...................................... 24653 s 1131 ............................. 2 5784
pub|.caumom.es ....................................................................... 54215_ ....................................... R 54215
Tota| ........................................................................................ 91,178 .................................. R 74 1’131 ............................. 92’583
The structure of the Group's total loan and money market portfolic at 31 December 1999 is

as follows:

€m Accounts receivable  Repo transactions Guarantees Total
Banks ................................................................................. 12789 .................................... 836 ......................................... e 13625
Compames and pnvatemdmduais BT 23062 e 1067 24129
Pumcamhormes e e 54396 i . 54396
Tota| OSSOSO ST SO TR OO 90’247 ........................... 836 ............ e 1 ,067 .......................... 92,150

The foreign exposure of DePfa Group is restricted mainly to member countries of the
European Union. For the geographical classification of our assets please refer to the segment

reporting.

(32) Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are contracts or agreements whose values are derived from changes in interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, prices of securities, or financial and commodity indices. The
timing of cash receipts and payments for derivatives is generally determined by contractual
agreement. Derivatives are either standardised contracts executed on an exchange or
negotiated OTC contracts. Futures and certain options are examples of standard exchange-
traded derivatives. Forwards, swaps, and other option contracts are examples of OTC

derivatives. OTC derivatives are not freely negctiable. in the normal course of business,




however, they may be terminated or assigned tec another counterparty if the existing

counterparty agrees.

Derivatives may be used for trading purposes or for risk management. DePfa'Group uses
derivative financial instruments, primarily as a means of hedging the risk associated with
‘asset/liability management for interest bearing transactions. However, certain of the Group's
derivatives used for risk management do not qualify for hedge accounting and are therefore
classified under ‘trading’ in the Group accounts under US GAAP.

Derivatives used by the DePfa Group include:

— Interest rate and currency swaps
- Interest rate futures, FRAs, and interest rate options

- Foreign exchange forward contracts

Interest rate swaps involve the exchange of fixed and variable rate interest payments between
two parties at specified times based on a common nominal amount and maturity date. The

nominal amounts are not exchanged; they are used solely to calculate the interest payments.
Currency swaps have nominal amounts in two different currencies. The interest is also paid in
these currencies accordingly. Furthermore, an exchange of the nominal amount often takes

place at the beginning and the end.

interest rate options are contracts that allow the purchaser to receive services, conclude
contracts for financial instruments or buy and sell, at a specified price within a specified pericd
of time. The opticn writer is obligated to pay cash, buy, sell or enter into a financial instrument,
if the purchaser choocses to exercise the option. Option contracts purchased or written by the
DePfa Group include caps and floors, which are interest rate hedging instruments, as the
agreement payment covers the difference in interest between the agreed interest rate and the
market rate. Exposure to current and possible future movements in interest rates and the
ability of the counterparties to meet the terms of the contracts represent the primary risk

associated with interest rate options.

Futures are standardised exchange-traded agreements to receive or sell a spegific financial
instrument at a specific future date and price. FRAs (forward rate agreements) provide for the

payment or receipt of the difference between a specified interest rate and reference rate at a




future settlement date. Interest rate risks represent the primary risks associated with such

contracts. Where these are OTC transactions, there is the risk associated with the ability of

the counterparties are in a position to meet the terms of the contracts.

Forward foreign exchange contracts invoive an agreement to swap two currencies at a price
and settlement date agreed in advance. Exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange
rates and the ability. of the counterparties to meet the terms of the contracts represent the

primary risks associated with forward contracts with a foreign exchange element.

The following table presents nominal amounts for standardised derivatives and OTC
derivatives as at each year-end. To determine the on-balance sheet credit exposure, the
figures are based on replacement costs, which were calculated in line with the market value

method as the sum of all positive market values excluding any netting arrangement.

This presentation assumes a worst case scenario in terms of credit risk, as it is based on alt

counterparties defaulting at the same time.




162,286 i



The following overview shows the maturity of the derivatives by product group:

Nominal amount
Residual maturity 31 December 2000

€m <=1year 1-5 years > 5 years Total
o andcurrencyswaps ................................. 22543 ............................. 67876 ......................... 42612 e 133031
Imerestratefuturesandforwardrateagreemems ................ ; 295 e S 2295
interest rate options purchased - 592 - 3001 12 3605
. oonnswrltten .......................................................... e

O therrnterestratecomracts .................................................. 314 ...............................................................................................................
o gn o ang S 7982 .........................................................................................................................
popa T 34’172 ............................................................................................................
Nominal amount

Residual maturity 31 December 1999

€ m <=1 year 1 5 years > 5 years Total
mterest rate oy Currency Swaps e, 23 ey 46 382.... R 67 578' __A137 o
Interest rate futures and forward rate agreements 5 o4 - . 5 5,004
lnterest o optlons purchased S 2385 .................................................. 3747
lmerest . rate optxonswmten ............................................. 14 P 3467 ................. 6 0
Other mterest rate Contracts S e oy
Fore'gn exchange forward contracts S 8437 S S 8456
Total e, 39662 U 52,234 70,390 162,286

The nominal amounts of the derivatives indicate which derivatives are used in particular by

DePfa Group but do not provide any information on the Group’s exposure to credit or market

risks. The amounts exchanged are based on the ncminal amounts and the contractual terms

of the instruments. Nominal amounts are not reported in the Group balance sheet and

generally exceed the future cash requirements refating to the instruments.

The following tables show the year-end fair value of the trading portfolio and the average fair
value for each type of instrument in the OTC derivatives portfolio and treated under US GAAP

as trading derivatives:




1999
End of period fair value
Assets Liabilities
e 1 73 ........................... . 105
SRR o -
BRSO 2_
L -
4 ............................. =
e o R
SO 179 ........................... 1 07
1998
Average fair value
Assets Liabilities

(33) Credit risk concentrations in the derivatives business

In the derivatives business, credit risks are monitored by establishing limits for each borrower,
requesting appropriate security and applying a standard lending policy. In order to standardise
the setting of limits, internal credit rating categories have been defined which represent the
maximum framework for the setting of limits. In principle, counterparty risks are grouped into
internal credit rating categories in accordance with the ratings set by Fitch IBCA, Mocdy’s and
Standard & Poor’s. To reduce credit risks, the Bank has entered into various Master Netting
Agreements ensuring the right to set off “claims on” against “liabilities to” a counterparty in the

event of defaults on payments or bankruptcy.




The current replacement costs, which were calculated in the table above as the sum of all

positive market values excluding netting agreements, are an adequate indicator for the

counterparty exposure arising on OTC derivatives.

. The table below presents counterparty exposures by the type of counterparty:

£€m 2000 1999
Type of counterparty Counterparty Counterparty
exposure exposure
QECD(;emralgovemmems L o
oECDbanks ............................................................................................ 2643 2248
o ECDfmanqalms munons ........................................................................ 165 .................................. 1 18 .
Other(compamesandpnvatemdw,duals) ................................................ P =
NonoECDcemra|govemmems e =
NonOECDbankS L 33
NonoECDfmanc|a|msnunons L 93
Other(compamesandpnvate mdeualS) et =
Tota| ........ O SO OUPYOSOUOTRUORUOSPOIOON 2, 808 ................................ 2’492

31 Dec. 1999

€m

Contingent liabilities

on guarantees and indemnity

agreements 1,067
R ther habmt;es ..................................................................................................
7,158

Liabilities on guarantees and indemnity agreements mainly refer to lcan guarantess.




.

Irrevocabile loan commitments arise during the course of lending operations and exactly
represent the specified offers of the Bank for a loan to potential borrowers. Normally, not all of

these commitments are accepted. They are classified as follows:

31 Dec. 1999




‘_(E)' Segment reporting

Within segment reporting, the earnings position of the Group is shown from two aspects. The
first is segmentation by operating unit, whére the segmentation is based on the internal
organisation and reporting structure of DePfa Group. The information shown here is,
therefore, based on the internal accounting data used to actually manage the different

business segments. Secondly the Group's results are also shown by region.

Adjustments to and further developments in methods for segment reporting in 2000 were
applied to the comparative figures for the previous year, Some of these vary from the figures
already published. The segmentation of the Group resuits has been carried out in compliance

with the requirements of US GAAP.

Segmentation by operating unit

DePfa Group operates in the areas of public sector financing, property business and
{T/corporate consultancy. The business segments are broken down on the basis of products,

services and client groups.

Pubilic sector financing comprises both budgetary finance for first and second level public
sector bodies in Europe, North America and Japan as well as financing of public sector

infrastructure projects.

Property business consists of residential and commercial property finance, and property
financing for institutional clients. DePfa Group offers a wide range of products from M&A for
the property sector to acquisition finance and asset management. The results reported in the
‘Property bank’ column comprise the property business, excluding the property holdings

which are to be separated out, but including specific loan loss provisions.

The IT and corporate consuttancy unit offers software for property administration and
management as well as related banking products {rent collection and payment transactions)

to more than 2,000 institutional residential property companies.




The allocation of income, expenditure and equity is based on the assumption that the three
segments are legally autonomous units, which cperate independently of one ancther. Income
and expenditure resulting from transactions between profit centres within a segment are,
therefore, directly consolidated within the appropriate segment. The column
"Consolidations/reconciliations/other” exclusively shows consclidations which cannot be
clearly allocated to one segment on the above basis, reconciliations, and to a small extent,

other items of income and expenditure which cannot be aliocated.

The three business segments are clearly separable units and there are no internal services
spanning more than one segment. Apart from the consolidation items mentioned above, there
are therefore no intersegment sales. Net treasury income has been allocated to the property

financing and public sector financing segments depending on the underlying transaction.

The results of the 1T division from rent collection and payment transactions is shown under ‘
“Income from payment transactions” in the IT and corporate consultancy segment.




Segment reporting by operating units

£€m Public sector Property business
financing Property
bank"® Total
2000 1999 2000 2000 1999

Total net interest income 221 317 309 336 394
Netcommlsslonmoome ............................... g R 35 ....... 35 ........... 32 .....
Trading resut 38 26 30  -30 28
Administrative expenditure 73 50 210 210 178
Baiance of oth erop eratmg . Ome and .......................................................
expenditure 5 =31 41 -15 12
Provisions for loan losses -1 155 185 62
Nt o o e sea o “a0 pa
( . WthhlnCOI’nefrom ...........................................................

treasury actMtles) 1 39 21 21 79

m(ofwhnch I e

payment transactions)

Taxes ........................................... o w e i

IT and
carporate
cunsultancy
2000 1999
108 102
104 73
) -8

9 21

18 15

8 12

Consolidations/
reconciliations/
other

2000 1999
17 -3

-21 -14
-7 -2

6 Al

9 -4

-4 -1

32 13

DePfa Group

Aliocated eqwty
Cost/mcome ratuo

ROE before taXes P

" Total property business excluding the asset pooal, i.e. exciuding the property holdings to be separated out, but including all specific loan loss provisions.

2 As a result of the special factors in the tax account for 2000, no amount of the tax charge is allocated to the property bank.

Segmentation by geographical region

The geographical segmentation is carried out for Germany and international regions. The

criterion for allocation to a geographical region is the client's domicile or the location of the

property being financed. The segments are again shown on a consolidated basis, whereby

the column ‘Consolidations/reconciliations/other’ shows the positions which could not be

Clearly allocated to a particutar region.




Segmentation is carried out using the same method as for the formation of operating
segments. The allocation of income and expenditure, as well as equity to the geographical

regions, is on the assumption that they are legally independent operating units.

Segment reporting by geographical region

€m Germany International Consolidations/ " DePfa Group
reconciliations/
other
2000 1998

Balance of other operating income

and expenditure 11 -36 9 21 -19 -1 1 -16

mo g e o e o ey .
Notioor theyear bt e a7 e s e Jgp e
NI equxty JE S 1150 .......... 1141 ............. e e e 1924 ........... 1792
Cost/mcomeraﬂo ........................................... o son 425% S ez e

Equity allocation

Equity is allocated to business segments based on the underlying economic risk. The
economic capital consists of the amounts required from a business point of view to cover
unexpected losses resulting from market risk, counterparty exposure and other risks. The

concept of equity backing is explained in detail in the risk report.

The calculation of the DePfa Group's return on equity is based on average balance sheet
equity. As the segments’ equity is calculated using a completely different system {o that

‘used for Group equity, one figure does not logically compare with the other. The equity
reconciliation is, therefore, simply the difference between the total of the segments’ equity and
that of the Group. |




(F) Other details

(35) Financing volume

At 2000 year-end, the financing velume amounted to € 137.5 billion (1999: € 134.4 billion) and
breaks down as follows: ‘

31 Dec. 1999

107,398

— of which residential € 11,611 million
(1999: € 11,848 million)

_ of which commercial € 11,485 million
(1999: € 10,005 million)




Property finance was carried out in the following regions:

(36) DePfa Group as lessee

DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG and its subsidiaries are committed under capital leases
for the rental of capital goods. These leases have varying renewal options and require, in
certain instances, the payment of insurance premiums, ground rents and other operating
costs. At December 31, 2000, the aggregate minimum rental commitments under the
irrevocable capital lease and operating lease, exclusive of renewals, were as follows:

€m Capital Lease Operating Lease
e e S
Total 8 7




B
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(37) DePfa Group as lessor

Rental income for operating leases (rental and lease agreements) amounted to € 48 m (199¢:

£ 5 m) and was reported under income in the profit and loss statement. The book value of the
rented and leased assets amounts to € 455 m (1998: € 78 m) and the aggregate depreciation
in connection with this stands at € 136 m (1999: € 2 m). Future rental income on such

operating leases, which at 31 December 2000 have an initial or residual maturity of more than

one vyear, is as follows:

Operating Lease

DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG has furnished an absolute and irrevocable guarantee for
the proper payment of capital and interest amounts for bonds issued by DePfa Finance N.V,,
Amsterdam. DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG ensures that DePfa-Bank Europe pic,
Dublin, and DePfa-Bank France S.A., Paris, and DePfa Investment Bank Ltd, Nicosia are able
to fulfil their contractual obligations. DePfa Immobilien Management AG, Wiesbaden, has
furnished a modified letter of comfort for up to € 7 million for Aufbaugesellschaft Prager Stra3e
mbH. Under the terms of this, DePfa Immobilien Management AG of Wiesbaden has
undertaken to ensure this financing, if in return one or more urban properties with net total

proceeds of at least € 7 million are transferred to it.

DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG has issued to the Federal Association of German Banks

an exemption certificate as defined by Section 5 para.10 of the articles of association for the

‘ deposit guaranty fund of this association on behalf of DePfa Bank AG.




As a result of its participating interest in the nominal amount of € 1 m in Liguiditats-Konsortial-
bank GmbH, Frankfurt am Main, DePfa Bank AG has an obligation to make additional
payments of up to € 6 m. in addition, DePfa Bank AG will be held liable in its own name on a
pro-rata basis, if other co-partners, whose total shares amount to € 56 million, fail to fulfil their

obligation to make additional payments.

Commitments to affiliates for uncalled payments on partly paid shares amounted to
€ 80 m at the end of 2000.

(39) Related party relationships

Transactions with affiliates and with companies in which a participating interest is held amount

10:

Affiliates Companies in which a .
participating interest is held
31 Dec. 2000 31 Dec. 1999 31 Dec. 2000 31 Dec. 1999

The total income and expenditure from these transactions refers essentially to interest.

Loans to officers of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG

At the end of financial year 2000, loans to members of the Supervisory Board stood at
€ 222,668.91 and loans to members of the Management Beard totalled € 31,638,975.49.



Remuneration of the Management Board and Supervisory Board

Total remuneration of the Management Board of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG
a_mounted to € 6,820,633.65 in financial year 2000 and remuneration of the Superviscry
Board amcunted to € 447,122.52.

Pension payments of € 847,773.87 were made to former members of the Management Board
or their surviving dependants. The pension provisions for this group of persons amounted to
£ 8,305,551.10 at 31 December, 2000.

The Supervisory Board remuneration by subsidiaries for members of the Management
Board or of the Supervisory Board of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG amounted to
€ 213.566.62 and € 206,634.75 respectively.

(40) Long Term Incentive Plan of the Management Board

Since 1998, the members of the Management Board have been given the option under a
Leng Term Incentive Plan of acquiring shares in DePfa Deutsche Pfandoriefbank AG on the

basis of a loan against securities.

The repayment and interest on the loans granted are linked to the price of DePfa shares in
relation to the share price of a portfolio of comparable defined naticnal and international
competitors. The shares are blocked for 3 years and the incentive plan can be exercised in
the following years, starting in 2001. At the time of exercise, the interest and repayments of
the loan against securities are discharged in full or in part in four defined stages, depending
on the extent to which the DePfa share price has outperformed the other shares and the
repayments on the loan against securities. Performance is calculated on the total shareholder

return principle.

Provisions of € 8 million were set aside for execution of the Long Term Incentive Plan.




-

(41) Average number of employees during the financial year

Female Male Total
et e, 5 41 13522293
e e, 17211 ......................... 183
OO 1113 1363 ................... 2476
e e e, PR B 80
Tramees ................................................................... 19 ......................... 34 53

(42) Shareholders’ equity and risk positions under Banking
Supervisory Standards

Pursuant to sections 10, 10a of the German Banking Act in conjunction with the banking
supervisory Principle |, the core capital ratio (core capitai/risk-weighted assets) must not fall
below 4%. As a result of the implementation of the Capital Adequacy Directive, the Bank has
also been required since 1 October 1998 to calculate the so-called own funds ratio pursuant
to section 2, Principle I. The own funds ratio is calculated on the basis of the ratic of own
funds to total risk-weighted assets and the weighting factor of 12.5 for market risk positions

and option contracts. The ratio must be at least 8%.

The risk-weighted assets, market risk positions and own funds are as follows:

31 Dec. 1999

Risk assets (credit-based weighting) € m

Risk-weighted assets

1,740
e
3,065

6.0
o
i




e | &
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With an overall ratio of 10.9%, DePfa Group exceeds the required rate of 8%.

In 1989, the Bank joined the Basel Accord on international capital convergence on a voluntary

basis. The BIS regulations lead to the following ratios:

in % 31 Dec. 1999

C Ore capna]rano ................................ 55
Capﬂa(ratlo e B BB R 95
Own - nds e B e 94 .




~ (G) Risk report

1. Risk Management within DePfa Group

A strong focus on risk is essential, not least in view of the Bank's overall aim of achieving a
sustained increase in its corporate value. The desired goal is only attainable in the long-term if
there is a favourable relationship between risk and return. The importance of this fact is

reflected and documented in the high priority given to risk management within DePfa Group.

Taking on risk is an elementary aspect of banking. Handling risk must be central to the Bank’s
oberating activities to ensure targeted risk management and an optimum use of the capital
put at the Bank’s disposal by its shareholders. We have comprehensive risk assessment and
management systems, which are under continual development. This involves considerable
expenditure in terms of personnel and technoicgy, that permits our keeping in step with the
increasingly wide-ranging and complex demands of the international banking business. Well

functioning systems for assessing and identifying risk at an early stage and managing risk are

therefore an integral part of our business.

In the last few years, legislation has been introduced around the world requiring company
management 1o establish adequate systems for monitoring risk. The objective of these
statutory requirements is to ensure early identification of developments that could have an
adverse impact on asset portfolios. The risk management system of every financial institution
must embrace this primary aim at the operational level and be in a position to anticipate and
assess any negative changes. It is of primary importance in this respect tc generate
information that is highly relevant to risk management and to compile this information in such
a manner as to provide decision-makers with an overview of the bank’s risk and earnings

position at all times.

The debate on risk has mainly centred in the last few years on banking superviscry
regulations, including credit risks, market risks and operational risks. Methods have gradually
been introduced to make these risks guantifiable and therefore manageable. In this regard,
however, it is worth recalling that every company considers strategic risk as the highest on
their list of risks. Making the wrong strategic decisions can have dire conseguences such as
putting the long-term prosperity or even the existence of the company in jeopardy, the very

same consequences that the establishment of risk management systems seeks to avoid. ‘




A strategy is successful when it is able to serve the right products to the right clients in the

right markets at the right time. However, this rather static definition does not take into account
the high rate of change in today's economic environment, which makes it necessary for us to
continually review the strategic orientation of DePfa Group. In the past decade since
privatisation, our unswerving strategic focus has enabled us to access new areas of business.
In particular the development of our international public sector financing activities and the
expansion, initially in Europe, of our property finance arm reflect this, These units are currently

the most profitable in the Group.

In 2000 more mergers were announced and carried out in the banking sector around the
world than ever before. DePfa Group has not folliowed this strategic trend. Foliowing intensive
preparatory work and weighing up of the strategic options, the Group announced in
November 2000 that it was aiming to completely split its public sector financing and property

financing activities.

As is the case with every new positioning, this alsc involves a strategic risk, but we are
convinced that it will improve our ability to concentrate on our core competences in the
respective market segments and thus create additional value for our shareholders. The
reaction of the capital markets o our decision to enhance our focus was altogether very

positive.

Organisation of risk management within DePfa Group

Risk management is integrated in DePfa’s business procedures. Management and control of
relevant risks are therefore the responsibility of all those involved in the various business

procedures.

In & bank, which has handled financings traditionally on balance sheet, the lending business
contributes considerably to the Bank's overall risk. As a result, assessing the risk involved in
the financing transactions is the core area of competence, which is and must be a high

priority for all participating employees and units. Extensive regulations and guidelines as well
as a sophisticated structure of competences for awarding and examining ratings ensure that
the risk policy defined by the Bank is respected. The risk policy is derived from the strategic

orientation of DePfa Group and determined by the Management Board. During the term of a




loan, the loan exposure is subject to constant monitoring. The illustration below gives an over-
“view of the controlling procedures applied throughout the Group for counterparty exposure,
which besides the traditional lending business (property, infrastructure and public sector finan-

cing) consists of credit risks from Treasury activities.

Monitoring functions in credit risk

Credit Risk

* Approval of Supervisory Board required according to size of credit application

Market risks are taken on by the Treasury units of the DePfa Group, while coordination takes
place at the Group’s head cffice in Wiesbaden, Measuring and monitoring the Bank's daily

market risk position is the responsibility of Group Risk Control.




The following table summarises the allocation of responsibilities in risk monitoring:

Property business ) Central Credit Department, Financing Departments
r
bt Infrastructure financing Public Sector Risk Management
a
= .
o Public sector financing . Credit Department, DePfa-Bank Europe plc
>
s Treasury transactions/derivatives Credit Risk Control, Correspondent Banking
I ‘
5 -Country risks Country Limit Committee, Market Risk Controf
o]
(&} .
Quantitative risk modeling Credit Risk Control
Market risks - Market Risk Coritrol -
Liquidity risks o Treasuy
“OVL'?‘era‘tic.mél'r'ig}‘és“ - Umts‘ncharge '6f'thé'§}6éé§ses involved, Chief 'Oéerating O%flice'-?
* General compliance wrthregutanons STl A

2. Measuring and managing the fundamental types of risk
2.1 Counterparty risk

Counterparty risk is defined as the possibility of losses due to the partial or total default on a
loan in connection with a deterioration in the credit-worthiness of a business counterparty.
The risk can arise from both on-balance sheet (traditional lending business) and off-balance
sheet transactions (e.g. counterparty risks from derivative financial instruments). Whereas in
traditional lending, credit risks relate to the credit-worthiness of the borrower and the
underlying value of the collateral, counterparty risk addresses the possibility of non-fulfilment
of the contract on the part of the counterparty and the losses resulting from its replacement

with an equivalent position made on more unfavourable terms.




There is a distinction between credit risk and country risk in relation to the business
counterparty’s credit-worthiness. Credit risk applies to the contractual fulfiment of the loan by
the business counterparty. In order o assess the possibility of a partial or total default on the
loan, special internal rating procedures are applied within DePfa Group for the property finan-
ce, infrastructure financing and public sector financing units as well as for counterparties from
Treasury transactions. As part of moves 1o develop an overall risk management system, a .
master scale is used to combine the various rating procedures. tn contrast to credit risk,
country risk i’s not dependent on the business counterparty's individual credit-worthiness.
Country risk relates to the possibility of default on cross-border transactions as a resuit of
overriding political and economic developments (e.g. foreign exchange restrict‘ions). Country
risk therefore adds to the importance of the credit-worthiness of the international business

partner.

Ahead of market risks and operational risks, counterparty risk forms the most significant risk

element within the Bank. Particularly in light of forthcoming changes under 'Basel II' efficient
management of credit risk is an important pillar of overall risk management of DePfa Group.

The following section outlines how DePfa manages risk on a Group-wide level and is broadly

grouped according to the structure of our business units.

Public sector finance

With a share of 81.7% of total financing, public secter finance is the main business activity of
DePfa Group. We have focused this division on clients with a first rate credit standing. The
portfolio is broadly diversified with loans in over 30 countries and our business is clearly aimed
at the sovereign level. A specific limit is established for each public sector entity, which is
derived from our internal scoring system. An exception is national governments with first class
credit ratings such as the Federal Republic of Germany or France, which require no special
credit analysis. 78.7% of the total portfolio with a volume of € 112.4 billion is classified with a
risk weighting of 0% in accordance with BIS regulations and 19.0% of public sector financing
carries a risk weighting of 20%. The new Basel capital adequacy rules will not lead tc any sig-

nificant shifts within our equity allocation in public sector finance. The high degree of

p : credit-worthiness among our public sector loans is evident from the assessment of the rating
agencies: almost 40% of the portfolic is rated AAA and more than 50% is rated AA. The



non-rated assets, 6% of total loans, consist primarily of loans to German federal states and

public sector credit institutions. At € 375 million, public sector infrastructure financing makes

up only a small portion of our total financing.

Property finance

Counterparty risk in property finance relates to credit risk and collateralisation risk. Credit risk
arises from the possibility of the business partner failing to meet his 6bligations on payments
of interest and principal based on a long-term view of his economic and financial situation.
Collateralisation risk results from the possibility of a deterioration in the value of the underlying
collateral (normaily the property being financed), due to specific factors relating to the property

or the market situation,

The Bank has sophisticated risk management systems 1o manage these risks. This is supple-
mented by a Credit Risk Controlling unit, part of Group Controlling, which is responsible for
measuring and monitoring the Bank's overall risk position. Reviews are also conducted by the

internal audit department.

Credit approval process

The implementation of a scoring system for credit applications is a decision making tool when
granting loans to private clients. The Bank uses an internal rating process in its commercial
property finance business that leads to objective and uniform loan decisions, and facilitates a
systematic identification of risk for regular loan monitoring and portfolio analysis. Using a
scoring system, it is possible to assess credit risk, property risk, and property-related
completion risk and/or marketing risk. The Bank has as a result of its early introduction of a
rating system tailored towards the property finance business, created the conditions

necessary for implementing Basel il requirements, particularty in terms of historic data.




The credit-worthiness rating is supported by an evaluation process that automatically
calculates balance sheet ratios. The assessment of these ratios, together with gualitative
factors, form the basis of credit risk evaluation. Also included in the evaluation are sector
ratios calculated by recognised institutions. In the case of borrowers belonging to a group, the
credit-worthiness of the group, the quality of the overall loan commitment extended to this
group as a whole, and, on the basis of these factors, the appropriateness of the entire trans-
action volume are taken intc account. Credit limits for restricting exposure are established
accordingly. In the case of larger leased properties, the examination of credit-worthiness ‘
also includes the main tenants of the property, whose long term financial situation has a

considerable influence on the property.

The property rating is based on the loan-to-value ratio and the return achieved through

renting the property.

The current and future value of the property provided as collateral is calculated according to
region and type of property by experts who operate independently of the loan decision
making process. For property financing activities outside Germany, local external surveyors

are charged to carry out the valuation.

A computer-based system regularly monitors completion risks and/or marketing risks
relating to property, from disbursements, work-in-progress, success in marketing the property

and the resulting repayment ratio as well as changes in the value of the property.

Client accounts are organised by country as well as by type of commercial property where in
the latter case highly qualified teams with relevant experience in the respective sector of the

property market operate on a cross-border basis.




Collateralisation

At the end of the year 2000, the volume-weighted loan-to-value ratic for the German property
financing portfolio (perfofmir\g ioans) stood at approximately 79% of the assessment value
that is on average approximately 10% below the open market value (former Western Germany
approximately 78%, former Eastern Germany approximately 78%). The volume-weighted
loan-to-value risk ratio for non-German property financing is approximately 68%. This does

not include contractual additional chIateral that serves to reduce risk.

German Business (performing loans) vs. non-German Business (€ m) in %

German Business - performing loans Non-German Business - Total Business’

Total West East.

............................................... VojumeLT\/LT\/[_TVVO/UmeLTV vo/ume”v
Office Properties 1508 88% 8% 8% 3507 65% 5105  72%
Reta”propemes .............................. 849 ........ 85%89% ............... 84% ................... 114376% ................. 1991 .......... 82% ..........
Hote] Propemes .......................... 289 ........ 65%55% ............... 58% ................... 1649 ........... 6 4% ........... 1938 ......... 65% .........
5 pec!ahsed ‘ Propem ,es .................. 42 8 ........ 77% .............. 7 5% .............. 79% .................. 1067 ............ 7 4 % ................ 1 496 ......... 75% ,,,,,,,,,,
Soma[ Propeme S ............................ 426 ........ 84% .............. 8 5% ............... ?7% ....................... 31 . 5 O% .................... 457 ......... 82% ..........
o Propernes e B TR
owner occupied 4,894 77% 75% 84% 104 62% 4,998 76%

R es,dem,au Propemes e Fl—
tenanted 4,340 72% 76% 65%. 365 74% 4,705 72% ......
Undeveloped Piots of Land 209 105% 112% 89% 7 54% 216 103%

o mer ............................................. 28 4 ........ 96% .............. 87% ............ 106% .......................... O .............. s 234 ......... 96% . ]
Tota] ........................................... 13’ 317 ......... 79% .............. 79% ............. 73% ................... 7’873 . 5 8% .............. 21 ’ 1 90 ......... 75% .........

* Including buildings under construction due for sale




Loan-to-value by category (non-German business)

in % Office Retail . Hotel Spef;ialisea Saocial Residehtiaj Flésidentiaj Undevel. Other Total
Properties  Properties  Properties  Properties  Properties P-owner  Properties Plots
................................................................................................................................ ocoupied” | tonanted I
Belgium‘ 69 69 61 85 20 59 50 32 0 66
CzeChRepumkszo .................. 85 ................. 53 ................... OO ................... O ................... OO .................. 65

Denmarkmss ................ 75 ................. 75 ................... O ................. 76 .................. 78 ................... OO .................. 72

;:rance ...................... 62 .................. 6 7 .................. 47 ................. 64 ................... 0 .................. 2 9 .................. 59 ................... 080 ...... 61

G reat Bmam ............. 68 ................ 1 OO ............... 65 ................. 70 ................... O .................. 5 5 .................. 92 ................... O .................. O .................. 71 ..

o Gé ................ 6 1 .................. 61 .................. 7956 .................. 4 3 ................. 51 .................. 60 ................... O .................. 70

Luxembourg .............. 51 O ..................... 0 ................... O ................... 0 .................... O .................. 5 7 ................... 0 .................. O .................. 53

pé,an.d e 73 .................. 72 .................... O ................ 70 ................... O .................... O ................... O ................... O ................... O .................. 7 2

Spam ....................... O .................. 71 .................... O ................. 82 ................... O ................ 100 .................... O ................... O .................. O ................ 74 .

e e 54 .................. 5 1 .................. 67 ................... O ................... O ................. 78 .................. 73 ................... O .................. O ................. 50

Swnzeﬂandm ................. 7 9 ................ 91 .................... 0 ................... O ................... O .................... O ................... O O ................. 83

Nethed?mds .............. 76 ................. B 2 .................. 71 .................. 79 ................... O ................. 5 7 ............... 89 ................. 790 .................. 75

Turkey ......................... O .................. 5 O ................ 57 ................... O .................. O ................... O ................... O ................... O .................. O .................. 54 -

USA5OO .................. 60 .................. O 530 ................... O ................... O ................... O .................. 56

o 5 5 ................. 7 6 ................. 54 ................. 74 50 ................ 62 ................. 74 ................. 54 ................. 3 0 .................. 58

" Including buildings under construction due for sale

Pricing
The pricing of loans stands in direct correlation to its level of riskiness. In this respect, the cost

of equity is included in the calculation of financings, alongside standard risk costs based on

client and property classification.

Risk sharing

The Bank actively syndicates loans as a means of risk sharing, primarily for large-scale

commercial property finance.




In addition to its syndication business, the Bank uses securitisation to put a cap on volumes

for sub-portfolios according to property types. Securitisation allows the Bank to transfer the
risk inherent in a property financing portfolio or sub-portfolio, while at the same time
maintaining its relationship with the clients and keeping open its access to the market.

Monitoring

The lending portfelio is reviewed on a regular basis with the help of traditional early warning
methods and, in particular, forms part of a computerised monitoring process. in this process,
which includes loan and property monitoring, financings which meet certain criteria in terms
of volume and risk are analysed regularly using a large number of credit-worthiness and
property-related indicators. Any deviations over time of these criteria between the actual
course and the planned course which formed the basis of the loan decision are identified and
the rating is adapted accordingly. in the event of a downgrading, the commitment is placed

on a waitch list for continuous observation.

Such loans are subject to review by credit committees depending on their volume, or
analysed with regard to their risk content by a task force set up specifically for this purpose.
The task force also determines the necessary steps for avoiding or at least reducing loss.

In the case of a markedly negative deviation, the loans are handed over 10 experts for

appropriate action.

Reporting

The Management Board is informed regularly about the development of the property
finance portfolio and its risk content in a management report. The management report is

supplemented by regular reports to the Supervisory Board.

The management report analyses the distribution of the portfolio according to countries,
regions, property types, client groups, volume and risk categories, and shows the
formation of cluster risks. It therefore serves as a basis for managing the entire portfolio and
repositioning sub-portfolios in terms of risk diversification and risk limiting.




Over the last five years, the Bank has achieved an increasingly broad geographical distribution
in all its commercial sub-portfolios due 10 a risk conscious expansion of its non-German

property financing business.

Sub-portfolio “Office Properties” according to countries/regions over the
last 5 years (€ m) in % '
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Sub-portfolio “Hotel Properties” according to countries/regions over the
last 5 years (€ m) in %
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Loan loss provisions

With regard to discernible risks in the property finance business, specific provisions are set
aside on the basis of the potential loss and according to uniform Group-wide standards.
General loan loss provisions are set aside for potential risks on the basis of evaluated

migration under US GAAP across the risk categories.
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Counterparty risk in Treasury activities

The Treasury activities of DePfa Group relate to securities transactions, money
market transactions and derivatives which are carried out aimost exclusively with bank

counterparties.

The level of credit risk associated with Treasury activities depends on the structure of the
particular transaction. While credit exposure for the on-balance-sheet instruments considered
here is expressed by their current market value, credit risk for derivative financial instruments
is estimated on the basis of the potential replacement costs, resulting from the replacement

with an equivalent position in the event of potential counterparty defautt.

A Group-wide systemn is in place throughout DePfa Group for monitoring counterparty risks in
Treasury transactions. internal rating categories are incorporated into this limit system. The
maximum limit granted, is calculated according to rating categories, and is determined accor-

ding to the particular counterparty’s grading in an internal rating category. The scoring of

counterparty risks in internal rating categories is carried out on the basis of cur own reports,

balance sheet data, external rating information as well as expert analyses. The Correspondent

Banking unit is responsible for monitoring compliance of the limit.

Within DePfa Group, Treasury transactions focus on first-rate borrowers with excellent credit-

worthiness.

The chart below gives a breakdown by external ratings of counterparties in Treasury
transactions. Unrated banks are savings banks, cooperative banks and subsidiaries of
international financial institutions, where external rating information is only available for the

parent company.




Treasury counterparties by external rating category

10.70 %

37.16 % 95.40 %

B AAA
AA+ 10 AA- “
A+ to A—"-’ ‘
BBB+ to BBB- |

241 %
24.33 % TR unrated

Country risks

Country risk is essentially defined as the combination of all economic and poiitical
events that can affect the ability of the counterparty to meet commitments in cross-border

transactions.

The Group's Country Limit Committee has divided up all countries where DePfa is prepared to
do business into six credit-worthiness categories, ranging from “first rate” to “severely
restricted” and has given each country a country limit denominated in eurcs. In addition to
individual limits, group limits (by credit-worthiness group) have been established, which

restrict the combined risk of several countries that have the same level of credit-worthiness.
The breakdown of individual countries according to their credit-worthiness is based on
economic information about the country, in-house research as well as reports of international

rating agencies.

All country evaluations and individual limits are approved by the entire Management Board.

Group Risk Contral is responsible for continually monitoring the utilisation of country limits.

93% of all country limits currently apply to countries with a first rate credit standing.




2.2 Market risks

Given the nature of DePfa Group’s operations, we attach varying degrees of significance to
the different market rigks. Interest rate risks relative to public sector and property finance are
the most significant, while currency risks only play a minor role. DePfa Investment Bank Ltd

~also trades in shares to a very limited extent.

The chart below illustrates DePfa Group's value-at-risk as at the end of financial year 2000.

Value-at-risk (€ m) as per end 2000

200
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Interest rate risk in foreign currency
I interest rate risk in Eurc

Trading activities are exclusively permitted for DePfa Investment Bank Ltd, the other
institutions in the Group being only exposed to market risk in the context of asset/liability
management. In view of these special factors, particular attention is devoted to risk

monitoring at DePfa investment Bank Ltd.




To quantify and manage market risks, DePfa Group calculates a value-at-risk on a daily basis

using the variance/covariance approach. This generally accepted statistical method measures
the potential loss in value of financial instruments which may occur during a pre-defined
pericd given a 99% pfobability level. The prescribed holding period of 20 days was
deliberately extended over BIS parameters (10 days). This very conservative approach in
terms of the possible neutralisation of items, also takes into account the specific nature of

activities of a mortgage bank or institution without a trading book.

As a further element in this approach, all of DePfa Group's activities are included in the
value-at-risk calculations giving a complete picture of the risk position for the Bank as a
whole, so that in addition to straightforward interest-related operations all other items on the

balance sheet are also taken into account.

We also have a particular approach for establishing limits to restrict market risks. We favour a

limit which is present value criented and therefore dynamic. This limit is calculated as follows:

Present value of interest-related business

+ book value of non interest-related business

Present value of company
/. equity
/. planned minimum profit of the next 4 years

Risk present value

Value at Risk limit: 40 % of risk present value




The present value of interest-related business calculated on a daily basis reflects earnings

frorn new business as well as valuation changes in all the Bank's assets resulting from
fluctuations in market parameters (e.g. interest rate changes, volatility changes, exchange rate
shifts). Through constant adjustment of the risk present value, the risk capability, and therefore
the risk limit, are adapted automatically to new economic conditions, whereby only a fraction
of the risk present value is finally released by the Management Board according to the value-
at-risk limit. This system has also been used by DePfa Bank AG to limit risk since May 2000.

Parallel to the adoption of the above-mentioned method for setting risk limits for the largest
units in the DePfa Group, the Management Board has also set a new rule for ad hoc
reporting, which states that the Management Board must be notified immediately if the value-
at-risk for the Group exceeds € 235 million. Since the rule was established, value-at-risk for
the Group has not even been close to this level. The maximum risk utilisation amounted to

€ 194 million on 26 September 2000. The lowest level was € 122 million on 20 June 2000.

Over the year, value-at-risk has developed as follows:

Value-at-risk (€ m) during 2000, reported at end of month
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The above restriction on the Group limit means that the units within the Group are also called

upon to monitor the movement in the risk present value of the Group. The Management
Board is notified if utilisation based on the available individual limits is approaching the Group
limit, so that they can review the desired allocation cf the risks in view of the given situation.
The table below shows in detail the highest risk utilisation for the main entities in the Group.

Value-at-risk DePfa Deutsche DePfa Bank AG DePfa-Bank
€m Pfandbriefbank AG Europe plc
Interest Currency Interest Currency interest Currency
30.12.99 86 3 67 - 22 -
28.12.00 100 5 86 - 1 -
L m———. M med® S S P, ...
Max. 138 g8 30
Min 45 82 0

Currenc;/w
3
5
194
122

To maintain the highest standards in value-at-risk calculations Market Risk Control is
responsible for assessing the volatilities and correlations on the basis of market data.
Statistical parameters of the different markets used in the calculation are only impiemented
after detailed examination. The validity of methods of calculating value-at-risk is examined by
means of regular back testing, whereby profit and loss resulting from actual market changes
are compared with the values forecast using the value-at-risk procedure {500 day basis). For
the year 2000, the value-at-risk calculations performed by the Bank did not underestimate the
market risks. In addition, extreme market fluctuations are simulated through worst case

scenarios. These calculations also produced satisfactory resuits.

The Management Board is notified on the level and utilisation of the limits for the Group and
the individual banks, as well as for the change in present values on a daily basis. In addition to
the division of value-at-risk according to risk factors (currency, interest rate per currency and
termy), the basis point value serves to illustrate the sensitivity of the items according to
individual terms. Furthermore, gap analysis provides information on a monthly basis on the net
asset position and net liability position over the next 15 years. These analyses are used in
performing different simulation calculations for determining risk or earnings. By means of
assumptions possible losses resulting from extreme or possible market fluctuations, for

example those caused by variable changes in yield curves or scheduled new business, can
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be quantified in advance. This is not possible with the value-at-risk method, and therefore

scenario analyses form an important part of monitoring market risks.

As a result of the complex monitoring of market risks already in place, the new requirement of
the Federal Banking Supervisory Authority to report interest rate risks in the mortgage bank
sector, which took effect in April 2001, will present no difficulties for DePfa Group. Under the
new requirement, a' risk indicator must be released each month giving the present value
changes resulting from a paralle!l shift of the yield curve by 100 basis points in relation to the
equity capital in accordance with § 10 German Banking Act (KWG). Should this value exceed
10%, the Supervisory Authority will require further information for a closer inspection of the
institution's risk situation. The first model calculation for the current month carried out after the
announcement of this new requirement in October 2000 has produced a risk value below this

statutory level.

Group Market Risk Control is responsible for designing and continually verifying the measuring
procedures to be applied, and fer monitoring compliance with the limits set by senior
management. in this process, great importance is attached to meticulous and extensive risk
monitoring in the Bank, as the successful execution of this task is also an important

condition for achieving the Bank’s ambitious targets for earnings and growth. Risk Control has

therefore planned a further increase in staff and technology systems.

In addition, market risks at DePfa investment Bank Ltd are not assessed using the value-at-
risk approach used within the rest of the Group. Instead a calculation method is used which
takes the current imminent price and liquidity risk of the individual items more directly into
account than a traditional method. The approach behind the capital-at-risk modet is to define

potential risk as the maximum loss of value for a portfolio in unfavourable market conditions.




Additional factors were determined accordingly and used to weight the individual investments

in order to calculate the capital-at-risk, These take into account not only the country category,
the product type and investment timescale but also potential price falls since the relevant
position was entered into. Greater risks are weighted with a far higher factor. In addition, a
ceiling was set for the sum of all transactions, and the asset distribution is also taken into
account through various individual imits. Aggregate exposure in emerging markets countries
which are in the highest risk category may not exceed 5% of the total investment limit. The
average utilisation of this limit by DePfa Investment Bank Ltd. amounted to 74% in 2000. The
capital-at-risk calculation is updated daily. On average, the limit utilisation rate was 90% for
2000 and utilisation amounted to US$ 111 million at the year-end. At its peak, capital-at-risk
amounted to US$ 135 million on 9 November, while a prudent investment approach at the

beginning of the year (4 Jan 2000) kept capital-at-risk to US$ 41 million.

2.3 Liquidity risks

Liguidity risk is defined as the possibility that current and future payment obligations will not

be fulfilled in full or at the due date.

It is the task of liquidity management to manage the origination and investment of funds in
order to achieve the most efficient and best possible results in terms of earnings. For this
purpose, DePfa Group operates a Group-wide liquidity management system, which integrates
all the relevant units. To ensure the ability of the Group to cover all payment obligations of the ‘
Group and its units at all times, our Treasury prepares liquidity balance sheets and cash flow
forecasts. Extensive liquid security portfolios are maintained to ensure liquidity in local
currencies. The liguidity ratios of the revised Grundsatz Il (German Banking Act) were kept

within the statutory limits.




2.4 Operational risk

Operational risk defines all potential direct or indirect risks caused by inadequate or failed
procedures, systems and controls, lack of knowledge and mistakes by individuals, or by
external events, such as earthquakes, accidents, criminal attacks, and also regulations, etc. In

particular, this definition includes legal risks to which the Bank is exposed.

in order to do justice to the increasing impaortance of operational risk in the banking
business, and in view of the expected supervisory regulations on capital backing of
operational risks, we have begun developing a syétem for gqualifying and gquantifying
operational risks as a supplement to existing control, procedural and organisational measures.
The essential components of this system are the definition and observation of qualitative
indicators for early identification of problems and weak spots in our procedures, and the
recording of information on iosses caused by operational weaknesses. This measurement and
monitoring system provides the responsible staff with an instrument for risk efficient and cost
efficient management of their procedures. We will also use this information to expand our
_management information system to include an operational risk menitor for independent and

continuous controlling of these risks.

In terms of organisation, the management of operational risks is the responsibility of the Chief
Operating Office, which is also responsible for cross-divisional co-ordination and quality
assurance of procedures and data, and of the operational units themselves. Following
completion, the operational risk monitor will come under the responsibility of Risk Controlling.
Our control mechanisms will be supplemented and complemented by the Audit department.

We pay particular attention to emergency planning. To exclude possible IT emergencies or
even breakdowns, we use duplicated and networked systems and databases located at our
offices in Wiesbaden, Dublin and Tokyo. If one element in this data network or computer
system fails, the other elements of the system take over its function allowing uninterrupted
operation 24 hours a day throughout the year. These technical measures are supplemented
by emergency planning for the individual operational areas. An ongoing process will develop,
review and improve methods for dealing with various possible emergency scenarios. This

should guarantee our uninterrupted business activities.




3. Risk management as a central element in Group management

A consistent link between risk management and earnings management in the DePfa Group is
a key characteristic of the management of the Bank as a whole. This characteristic is based
on the understanding that, given the overriding importance of profitability, controlling risks
rather than simply avoiding them is crucial to the economic success of the Bank. For this
purpose, the profitability of existing and potential new business is examined on the basis of
risk-adjusted Return on Equity (RoE). This ratio relates profit on financial transactions to the
capital necessary for backing risks associated with these transactions. In this way, risks are
only entered into or maintained if this is considered advantageous from the point of view of
profitability.

The level of capital allocated within the Group is in line with banking supervisory regulations
(Grundsatz | under German Banking Act) as well as supplementary regulations. These can be
regarded as very conservative. For example, even public sector loans, which do not have to
be backed by equity according to banking supervisory regulations, are assigned a notional
risk weighting-of 5 %. Furthermore, equity on the basis of the value-at-risk limit is allocated for

market risks of the banking book.

As part of our preparations for the new equity regulations to be introduced by the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision ('Basel II'), we are currently working assiduously on
setting up internal credit risk models. As soon as these have been implemented, it will be

possible to align the aliocation of equity on an internal rating basis with economic risks -

Utilisation of equity as well as risk-adjusted returns of the individual business areas are calcu-
lated by Group Controlling on a quarterly basis and published in the segment reporting. The
integration of earnings and risk management forms a crucial basis for the targeted and

value-oriented management of resources.
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* Chairman of the Management Boards of Bayerische Beamten Lebensversicherung a.G. and BBV Holding AG

- Bayerische Beamten Versicherung AG Chairman of the Supervisory Board
- BBV Krankenversicherung AG Chairman of the Supervisory Board
~ DePfa Bank AG - Member of the Supervisory Board
~ DePfa Holding Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH Memiber of the Supervisory Board
- Neue Bayerische Beamten [ebensversicherung AG Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Dr. Friedrich Adolf Jahn
President of the Zentralverband der Deutschen Haus-, Wohnungs- und Grundeigentimer e.V.

- DePfa Bank AG Member of the Superviscry Board

Siegfried Just
DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefoank AG

Dr. Thilo Képfler (from 20 June 2000)
Chairman of the Management Board for DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefoank AG and DePfa Bank AG {ret'd)

- Aachener Siedlungs- und Wohnungsgeselischaft mbH Chairman of the Management Board
- DePfa Bank AG Member of the Supervisory Board

— TLG Treuhand Liegenschaftgesellschaft mbH Member of the Supervisory Board




Jacques Lebhar

Chairman of the Management Board and Managing Director of Entenial

- DePfa Bank AG o Member of the Supervisory Board
- DePfa Holding Verwaltungsgeselischaft mbH Member of the Supervisory Board
- ESL & Network SA Member of theA Supervisory Board
- ESL & Network (France) SAS Member of the Supervisory Board
- La Mondiale Partenaire , Administrateur

- Vauban Mobilisations Garanties Member of the Supervisory Board

Klaus Novatius
DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG

Hans-Georg Poetzsch
DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG

- CP-Medienwerbung AG , Member of the Supervisory Board

Rudi Ditmar Runkel \
DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG

Dr. Rolf Schmid
President of the Federal and state pensions office

- DePfa Bank AG Member of the Supervisory Board
~ DePfa Holding Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH Member of the Supervisory Board




Dr. John W.M. Simons (until 20 June 2000}
Managing Director of Bouwfonds Nederlandse Gemeenten (ret’d.)

~ Copaco N.V.

- Huybregts & Boldrik Bouw & Vastgoedgroep
- MAB Groep B.V.

- M.J. de Nijs en Zonen Hoiding B.V.

~ Orange European Property Fund

- Orange Global Property Fund

- Stichting NDR (Draf en Rensport)

~- SNS Renal Groep

- Vesteda Management B.V. (Woconfonds ABP)

Jirgen Steinert (until 28 February 2001)
Senator (ret'd))

Member of the Supervisory Board

Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Superviscry Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board

President of the GdW Bundesverband deutscher Wohnungsunternehmen e.V. {ret'd.)

- DePfa Bank AG (until 28 February 2001)
- GdW Revision AG

- Hammonia-Verlag GmbH

Jurgen StrauB

Member of the Supervisory Board
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Management Board

General Manager and Principal Agent for Germany of the Schweizerische Lebensversicherungs- und Rentenanstalt

- DePfa Bank AG
- DePfa Holding Verwaltungsgeselischaft mbH
- Swiss Life Partner Aktiengesellschaft
Vermittlung von Versicherungen und Finanzdienstleistungen

- Swiss Life Asset Management Kapitalanlagegesellschaft mbH

Member of the Supervisory Board
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board




Prof. Dr. Dr. h.c. mult. Hans Tietmeyer (from 20 June 2000)
President of Deutsche Bundesbank (ret'd.)

- Bank fir internationalen Zahlungsverkehr (BIZ)
- BDO Deutsche Warentreuhand AG

- DePfa Bank AG

- DWS Investment GmbH

—ING Groep N.V.

Rainer Um
DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG

Dr. Georg Freiherr von Waldenfels
Member of the Management Board of VIAG TELECOM AG

- DePfa Bank AG

- DTB Holding GmbH

- Gerling-Konzern Lebensversicherungs AG
- Kléckner & Co. AG

- Kuhne und Nage! International AG

~ MESSE MUENCHEN GMBH

- Debrunner Koenig Holding AG

Wiesbaden, den 12. April 2001

Der Vorstand

bbina

BRUCKERMANN

iy AN

KREMER ‘ DR. LAMMERSKITTEN

Member of Board of Directors

Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board

Member of the Supervisory Board
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Management Board
Member of the Supervisory Board
Member of the Management Board

GLAUNER

DR. KOLBECK




(D Schedule of Shareholdmgs

of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG
. at 31 December 2000 in accordance with Sectlon 131 para 2 of the German Commerc1a1 Code

This information has been compiled on the basis of the individual accounts of the companies and has not been adjusted for
reporting under US GAAP. The companies listed in sections Il and lll are not consolidated or reported at equity, as DePfa
Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG has either no or only a temporary opportunity of controlling these companies, or the companies

are of secondary importance.

No. Name of the company Registered Share in Held via Equity in Results in
office capital No. DM million DM million

1 DePfa Deutsche Plandoriefoank AG ~ Wiesbaden

2  Aufbaugesellschaft Prager StraBe mbH Wiesbaden 100.0 31 0.1 0.0
- 3 ,,,,,,,, BauundBodenverwa)tungsgeseuschaﬁ ....... Wlesbaden 1000 ................. 4 18 ............................ 37_28 .
GbR
- 4 ,,,,,, BauBo é..au.- undBodenverwertungsund _____ Bernn ..................... 1 ooo ..................... 18 ...................... 986 ......................... ooﬂ

s BCoret D s Umemehmens_ e Mumch R 500 36 EURO? m , EUR 02m
beratung Bayem GmbH

. -verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH Berlin

“ 8 BauConsuIt Dv- und Untemehmens— Berhn - 1 OOO - 36 EUR 1.9m EURQOS5mM
beratung Berlin GmbH
7 BauCcnsuit DV- und Unternehmens- ' Hamburg 100.0 36 EUR15m EURO.7m

beratung Hamburg GmbH

v 8 wBauConsult DV- und Unternehmens- Hannover o 510 - 36 o EUR 3.1 m EUR O.‘3 m
beratung Hannover GmbH i ‘

9 BauConsuIt DV- und Unternehmens- Mainz 51.0 36 EUR24m EURO1m
beratung Mainz GmbH :
10 BauConsult DV- und Unternehmens- Stuttgart 74.0 36 EUR 0.6 m EURO.1m

beratung Stuttgart GmbH

11” baudata Gesellschaft fur bau und o Hamburg o tO0.0 - 36 EUR3OmM EURO.Om
wohnungswirtschaftliche
Datenverarbeitung mbH

12 BauSecura \/ersncherungsmakler GmbH Hamburg 51.0 36 2.7 2.5
13 BauTec Gesellschaft far WarmemeBtechnlk Hamburg 100.0 36, 11 13.5 3.5

und gebaudetechnische Planung und
Beratung mbH

14 ....BGB Gese“SChaﬁ FnednChSham U Bemn RSO 1000 I 3wg9 e —1 5 -05

Biock A-Nord
‘ 15  BGB-Gesellschaft Friedrichshain ' Berlin 100.0 31, 29 -14.0 2.4
Block A-Sud




BGB-Geselischaft Spindlers Hof Berlin

Berlin

DePfa Bau-, Verwaltungs- und
Controlling GmbH

DePfa Funding LLC
DePfa Funding Trust

Wilmington
Wilmington

DePfa Immebilien Fonds GmbH & Co.
Dresden-Klotzsche Baufeld C/D KG

GmbH

DePfa-Bank France S.A.

FRF 272.1m

-36.1 -20.2

IEP0.0m IEP 0O m

EUR 887.4m EUR 102 m

6.9 3.1

JPY 4709 m JPY 339.7 m

13.3 11.2
PIN18m  PIN-02m

CSK2.0m CSK 0.1 m

EUR 220.0m EUR82m

EURO0.0m EURB.2m

4.8 -2.1

0.1 0.0

0.1 0.0

0.3 -0.3

425 -39.1

26.1 ~3.5

0.0 0.0

USD 185.3m  USD 53.4 m"

EUR1.0m EURO.0m

EUR10m EURO.Om

EUR 13.5m EUR-1.2m

EUR1.2m EURO.Om

PLN 4.4 m PLN-3.0m

EUR2.3m EUR-0.8m

NLG 77.8 m NLG 0.8 m

NLG C.4 m NLG 0.3 m

NLG 0.0m NLG 0.0 m

EUR 23.7 m EUR 6.6 m
e

usb 2.8 m usbo.2mn

777.1 110.4

FRF 27.2m



48  Deutsche Structured Finance GmbH Frankfurt 100.0 18 EUR G4 m EUR4,3m
— 49 ........ DresdenKlotzscheBaufeidBGbR .................. Berhn ........................... 990 ....... 182931 ....................... _237 ........................ _19 4
50 ........ DresdenK)otzsch eBaufedeGbR ................... Bernn .......................... 2 90 ....... 7829 31 ......................... _152 ........................ _128
e 51 ........ DSFBetemgungsgesenschaﬁ mbH ............... Frankfurt g P EURo1m EURo1m
v 2 ..... EuroparklnvestB v ...................................... Amsterdam 998 ............... 40 ........................ -83 ............................. 01

. 53 ....... FunhavenBV ........................................... Ronerdam .................. 5 75 .................. 40 ....................... ’62 ......................... —0 L

. 54 ....... ésé}qékhéﬁaékéﬁé&ééé ............................... Vﬁéébédéﬁ .................. %56 .............. éfjéé ........................... ;éé”w.m.wum”muigém.

55 ........ GbRWlenerplatzMKélDresden ........................ vv;esbaden . 1ooo ............... 3128 .......................... oo ........................... 5 o

- 56 ........ GEVGmbH .......................................................... Wlesbadenmoo ....................... e 3 599 ........................... o oﬁ)
57 GEVNr 1 Grundstickserwerbs- und Wisbaden 100 s 03 02
Verwertungs-Objekt Prager StraBe-GmbH
e 5é ....... Gév]Qféuéﬂ}ﬁéﬂkﬁééﬁ&éﬁé:ﬁﬁa ............... vVééBéaéﬁ”mumiu¥ddb' .................... 56 ......................... ;éHm.m“m_.”m.m:éI;_
Verwertungs-Objekt Richterstrae-GmbH
59 ....... GE\/ w SObJek‘[ ................................... W|esbaden .............. 1 ooo ............ 56 31 ..................... —694 ....................... S 52
Augustusplatz -GmbH & Co. KG
60 GEVNr 4 Grundstickserwerbs- und  Wiesaden 1000 56 ~10.1 55
Verwertungs-Objekt 4-GmbH
..... 61Grundstucksgesenschaﬁ Fre:burg Tt 1 e o
Berliner Allee Freiburg mbH
62  Hatrum Grundstiicks GmbH & Co. KG Munich 1000 1,117 05 0.0°
. 63 ....... Ha{é{ SChwaaer Bockw |esbaden ................. W;esbaden ............. 1 ooo .................. 56 ......................... og .......................... e
Grundstlcks-GmbH
..... SQHM“Hyaéﬁékéﬁubgébgﬁ{Véﬁﬁﬁhhééf}ﬁBFfuﬂMéﬁﬁﬂéﬁf”'H”muigbﬁuuuunm“m'ié”'”“W““”m OO SN
65  IMMO Consulting S.p.A.  Rome 750 18
...... ééiﬂuntﬁﬁékfééééﬂééﬁéﬁ'#FA'995HHQH§éHM”””HMH”Vﬁéébéaéﬁﬂwun'”'”ibtydibn ‘.Aa{;éém“ﬂuu.‘,.””.H“””Hm.“”...“m” B
Fre1burg GbR
67  Pakhotel AerbugGbR  Switgar 1000 18, 4 -6.3 ey
, 68 . ”'PREM o AS PR orleans 700 e EUROS P
. 6 9 ....... Rehabmtanonsknn[kBarby .............................. Barby 1ooo ................. 56 ..................... _43 ST _02
Besnzgesenschaﬁran :
7'O m“Rehabxlltatlonsklmlk Buckow Buckow TOOO 56 ‘ ~49 —1O
Besnzgeseﬂschaﬁran
. 7 1 ......... Rehab”ﬂatlonsklmlkTernplm ......................... Templm .................... 1000 _________________ 56 ......................... _63 e __17
Besﬂzgese”schaﬂran
.%QHMIRMKDCMBUMHQAG - ARedBEemch >Hu7oﬁ” 'Sé“ EUR—O6rnm' EUR¥5érn

Wsuh] j GbR SRS

“V\/Jesbaden




Terrain Herzogpark und

Partner ErschlieBungs-GmbH

GbR

ABG Allgemeine Beteiligungsgesellschaft
fur Gewerbeimmobilien mbH & Co.
Objekt BBW KG

ABG Aligemeine Beteiligungsgesellschaft
fr Gewerbeimmobilien mbH & Co.
Obiekt Millerntor KG

Barnimer Grundstlcksgeselischaft
mbH & Co. Erste KG

Barnimer Grundsticksgesellschaft
mbH & Co. Zweite KG

BGB-Geselischaft Friedrichshain
Block B-Nord

BGB-Gesellschaft Friedrichshain
Block B-Sud

BGB-Gesellschaft Friedrichshain
Block E-Nord

BGB-Gesellschaft Friedrichshain
Block E-Sid

BGB-Gesellschaft Friedrichshain
Block G-Nord

BGB-Geselischaft Friedrichshain
Block G-Sud (1)

BGB-Gesellschatft Friedrichshain
Block G-Sid (2)

Centimanen Vastgoed B.V.

Munich




Delphi Vastgoed B.V.-Meteora
Vastgoed B.V. GbR

Deutsche Structured
Finance GmbH & Co. Ataier KG

Deutsche Structured
Finance GmbH & Co. Phénix KG

Frankfurt

WWDSF Verwaltungsgesel!schaﬁ mbH

Deutsche Structured
Finance GmbH & Co. Skorp|on KG

”Deutsohe V\/ohnstanen Hypothekenbank

Aktiengesellschaft

Dresden Klotzsche Baufeld G 2 GbR

”Dresden Klotzsche Baufeld G 3 GbR

Fachkhnlk Lenggnes far Neurologle und

Physikalisch-rehabilitative Medizin GmbH

GEV Nr. 5 Grundstiickserwerbs- und
Verwertungs- Objekt 5-GmbH

Hotel Schwarzer Bock
Wiesbaden Betriebs-GmbH

Infral.ease Leasinggeseilschaft fur
Infrastrukture|nnchtungen mbH

ml\/ Betemgungsgesellschaft fur
Immobilieninvestitionen mbH

Frankfurt

 Berlin-Wiesbaden 1

;:rankfu,-t IRTRTRI

Buenos Aires 100.0
Berlin 99.0
Berlin 99.0
Beriin 99.0
Berlin 89.0
“'Ber(mm U 990
M‘Frankfun R 1000
'”Lenggrles 1000
Wiesbaden 100.0
Amsterdam 99.8
Amsterdam 89.8
Munich 100.0
esbaden 100.0
Wiesbaden 490
Wiesbaden 100.0

94, 127 4.4 0.0
1,99 0.2 0.0%
18 ITL 12,540.6 m L 95.3 m®
47 FRF 11.0 m FRF 0.5 m
1 0.1 0.0°
33 ROL7,522.6m ROL-1,.207.8 mo
48 EUR 0.0 m EUR 0.0 m
48, 51 EUR 0.8 m EUR 0.8 m
48, 51 EUR 0.1 m EUR 0.1 m
48, 51 EUR 0.8 m EURO.8m
e - e
45 N.D N.D
31,29 N.D N.D
31, 29 N.D N.D
31, 29 0.0 0.09
31, 29 0.0 0.0°
31, 29 0.0 0 oa>
48 EUR 0.0 m EUR o o m
18 0.0 0.0
56 0.0 0.0
40 3.1 05
40 5.9 11
1 01 0.0
56 ~13.8 —1q9
18 EUR1.0m EUROOm”
18 102 04

L e

i




122 IV Geselischaft fir Immobilieninvestitionen  Wiesbaden 100.0 40, 121 EUROA m EURC.Om
GmbH & Co. KG
- 5 lVCImmobmenverwaltungsund ....................... Hamburgwoo .................... 19 ...................... G s
Controlling GmbH
- s Khmk amPark e Bad Bermch ............... L e L e
e l_ucascnbePammpat]onsSARL ..................... L JEAR L FRFOOm
. 26 ........ Monc eau Be ]g|que s L Brussels .................... 1 oo g 40 P i S PP
T MeteoraVastgoedB\/ ........................................ Velp'lOOO ...................... R e o
128 ...... PAGONBetemgungsgese||schaﬁmbH ............. W|esbaden ................ 750 .................. 5600 ........................... oo
129 ........ RealDntteGrundstucksgesenschaﬁmbH ....... oo 1000 S o e
130RealErsteGrundstucksgesellschaftmbH ....... Frankfurt ................... 1 ooo e oo ............................ o
e o Zwe|teGrundstucksgeseuschaﬁmbH ..... Frankfu I 1000 ..................... 18 ........................... Go oo
Y el ab|||tanon B Elbe ‘ Saale e Barby ........................ e e e o S .
133 ...... Rehabmtanonskhmk ........................................... Buckow 1000 ..................... e _48 _05
Markische Schweiz GmbH
134 ....... s G Templm T S T Ly
Yo SarahMon N o L oo 40 S Lo e
136 ....... SveaProper[y(Nederland)\/lBV ................. R . s R e
e TAUTONBetemgungsgesellschaﬁ T WIeSbaden ............. wo Y S S
- 38 ...... . Plaza Um e London ................... 1 ooo ............... 47 s oo oo
139 ........ VerwaltungDePfa ........................................... Hamburg .................. oy S o

Euro-iImmobilienfonds 1 GmbH

140 Burozentrum Parkstadt Munich 33.3 18 N.D. N.D.
Minchen-Schwabing KG
R DeutscheBauund ............................................ G e o a i
Grundstiicks-Aktiengeseilschaft
e o L Lo S e e e
e Westhafenee Iande Lo ankfurt ................... pey Sy g s
III2Assoc|ates ....................................................................................................................................................................................................
144 ........ AbfkoBetemgungsgese“scmﬂ mbH ................ Frankfun ..................... 380118 ....................... 01 ............................. oo
R BGBGese“schaftWohnparkStralau G o Sy o o
- o oo tsche lnterhotel . Ho[dmg ............................... Berh e e 4 56 ..................... 276 PR e
GmbH & Co KG :
s [ REEEEEEE LR L EEyotor oot OO SOOI POSNPOP PR



147 Deutsche Interhotel Verwaltungs GmbH Berlin 36.8 4,56 ' 0.1 0.0*
148 ....... B& P/DSFWmdparkaR ................................... Frankfurt soo .................... PP EUROOmEUR19m
& 49 ........ EURO oa Forum . ” G ese“SChaﬁ fur .................. Grunwal d .................... 3 3 3 ..................... 84 ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 08 R L
Immobilienentwicklung mbH
150 ....... lmmobmenScout GmbH ................................. Berlm .......................... S 84 ..................... 84 ........................ _64 ..................... s
151 ........ RusBauTec ....................................................... Moscow ...................... 50013 ............ RUROOm .......... RUR_o1mG>
B RUSKomBaUCmSU”GmbH .............................. Moscow ..................... o 36 ......... R am RUR-59mﬂ)
153 ...... SClruedeGen eve ........................................... Bob|gny ....................... 5 OO .................. 125 ............... FRFOOm ............... - RFOOm =
154 ....... SEMUBete|||gungsgegenschaﬂmbH ............. Frankfun ______________________ 330 e 78 ............................ 093‘
155 ........ Westhafen HausGmbH&Co ........................ Frankfurt ................... g G ND R
Projektentwickiungs KG
e WmdparkAhIerstedt ...................................... L 200 ................... yPR T
Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH
i WmdparkBorsum ............................................. Frankfurt ................ 200 ..................... W EUROOmEUROOm

Verwaltungsgeselischaft mbH

" Affiliated company in accordance with § 290 para. 2 no. 1 German Commercial Code
4 Peliminary results for 2000

¥ 1999 results

#1098 resuits

% Profit transfer agreement

9 L oss-sharing agreement

" Result under US GAAP

N.D. - No details




= -‘U) Auditors’ Report

We have audited the Group accounts of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG, Wiesbaden,
comprising the balance sheet, profit and loss account, statement of changes in shareholders’
equity, cash flow statement and notes to the accounts for the financial year from January 1 to
December 31, 2000. The Management Board of the Bank is responsible for the content and
preparation of the Group accounts. It is our task to assess, on the basis of the audit carried
out by us, whether the Group accounts comply with the United States Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (US GAAP):

We have conducted our audit of the Group accounts in accordance with the German audit

regulations and in compliance with the principles of proper auditing stipulated by the Gerfnan

Institute of Accountants (IDW) as well as in accordance with the International Standards on

Auditing (ISA). in accordance with these principles, the audit must be planned and carried out

in such a way that there is sufficient certainty that the Group accounts are free from material
misstatements. The audit planning takes account of knowledge of the Group's business ’
activity as well as its economic and legal environment as well as the anticipated margin of

error. As part of the audit, the evidence provided for reported values and details in the Group
accounts were verified on the basis of random checks. The audit includes an assessment of
the annual accounts of the companies included in the Group accounts, the dalineation of the
scope of consolidation, the accounting principles used and the material estimates made by
the Management Board as well as an assessment of the overall presentation of the Group

accounts. We believe that our audit forms a sufficiently reliable basis for our opinion.

With due regard to US GAAP, in our opinion, the Group accounts give a true and fair view of
the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the-Group and of the payment

flows for the financial year.

There were no objections to be raised as a result of our audit, which also extended to the
Group Directors’ Report for the financial year from January 1 to December 31, 2000. In our
opinion, the Group Directors’ Report as a whole provides an accurate picture of the position
of the Group and accurately conveys the risks inherent in future development. Furthermore,
we confirm that the Group accounts and a Group Directors’ Report for the financial year from
January 1 to December 31, 2000 meet the requirements to exempt the Bank from drawing up
Group accounts and a Group Directors’ Report under German law. The verification of compii-




ance of the Group accounts with the 7th EU Directive and the Bank Accounting Directive

required for exemption from the obligation to draw up Group accounts in accordance with the
provisions cf the German Commercial Code was carried out on the basis of the interpretation
of the Directive as per DRS 1 of the German Accounting Standards Committee.

Frankfurt/Main, April 18, 2001

PwC Deutsche Revision
Aktiengeselischaft
Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft

Rausch
Wirtschaftsprufer

ppa. Hinz
Wirtschaftsprifer




 Glossary

Securities available for sale

Eguities and debt securities, which are neither to be held to
maturity nor used in the trading portfolio, are classified as
available for sale. They are carried at fair value without

affecting net income.

Capital lease
If all the risks and rewards which arise from ownership of an
asset are transferred to the Ies'see, the lease is a capital

lease.

Equity method

This valuation method is used for equity interests in
companies where significant influence can be exerted on its
business policy (associates). Under the equity method, the
pro rata net income or loss for the year of the company is
included in the book value of the equity interest. Distributions

reduce the value carried by the pro rata amount.

Fair value

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for
which the instrument could be exchanged between different
market players in a liquid market. This corresponds to the
market or stock exchange value. If no such value is
available, it is calculated using suitable methods from finance

mathematics.

Foreciosed assets

Foreclosed assets are assets which have been acquired to
safeguard a loan receivable. Within the DePfa Group, these
are normally land or property which are intended for sale in
the short term.

General loan loss provision ;

The general ioan loss provision (general charges) is used to
provide for losses inherent in the current loan portfolio, which
have not yet been identified and for which no specific charge

has been set up.

Goodwill, badwill

Goodwill or badwill results from the surplus or deficit of the
costs of acquisition from the purchase of companies or
company shareholdings in relation to the fair value of the
shares in receivables and assets atiributable to the purchaser

on the date of acquisition.

Hedge accounting .

Under certain circumstances, US GAAP permits simplified

methods of accounting and valuation for transactions which
are used 1o close open positions and therefore reduce risk
(hedges). These enable the hedging relationship to be
reflected in the accounts by treating them as one accounting

unit.

A distinction is made between micro hedges, where cne
position is closed by another and portfolio hedges, where the
same assets or liabilities are hedged against market price
risks as a group. Hedging the risks inherent in a group of
different underlying transactions (e.g. from the fixed rate
schedule) is not eligible for hedge accounting under US
GAAR

Securities held to maturity
Securities held to maturity are those where the reporting
company is able and intends to hold the assats in its porticlio

until final maturity. ‘



Hybrid capital

Hybrid capital comprises capital components which,
afthough commercially and under supervisory banking
regulations can be viewed as shareholders; equity, are not
reported in the balance sheet as shareholders' equity.

Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income is a component of
shareholders’ equity in which valuation changes not affecting

net income are transferred.

Operating lease
Transactions regarding assets, where all material risks and

rewards remain with the lessor.

Projected unit credit method

This is the only method permitted under US GAAP for valuing
pension commitments. For benefit-related commitments, the
system is based on the projected benefit obligation (PBO),
the net present value of the committed pension obligations to
all current and future beneficiaries as at the balance sheet
date. If future developments in salaries affect pension
entitlements, these are factored in. Other components
included in the calculation are the service cost, the settle-

ment rate and other infiluencing factors.

" Purchase accounting
Purchase accounting, the acquisition method of capital
censolidation, can lead to goodwill being capitalised or bad-

will being carried as a liability when companies are acquired.

Tempofary concept
Under US GAAP, deferred taxes must be set aside for all
temporary differences between the tax valuation and the

book value of an asset or liability, which could in future lead

to a reduction of or increase in taxable profit.

Trading assets / liabilities

Assets and liabilities which under US GAAP are reported and
valued as a trading portfolio. With regard to derivatives, these
refer 1o all transactions which are not eligible for hedge
accounting, irrespective of their risk reducing effect. Negative
market values for derivatives are to be reported on the

liabilities side.




Report of the Supervisory Board
" of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG, Wigsbaden' o L ‘

The Supervisory Board has constantly monitored the management of the Bank throughout
the accounting period. It has obtained oral and written repons’ from the Board on business
development, the market position of the company, the commercial policy it intends to pursue
and corporate planning as well as major business events, and has dealt with matters where
its approval is required by law or under the memorandum and articles of association.

In total, there were 21 meetings of the Supervisory Board and its sub-committees, the
General Committee, the Balance Sheet and Audit Committee, the Personnel Committee, the
Credit and Market Risks Committee, the Express Committee and the Capital Measures
Committee. There were five meetings of the Supeﬁ;isory Board, where questions of
commercial policy and corporate planning were discussed. The General Committes advi_ses
the Management Board and prepares decisions for the Supervisory Board. The General

Committee also assesses the internal constitution of the Company with regard to operational

strength, efficiency and its potential for achieving set targets, it regularly reviews the .
Corporate Governance Principles and takes note of the Management Board report on state-
ménts made by the internal auditors. There were five meetings of the Executive Committee in
which, in particular, fundamental questions of personnel policy and the strategy and plans for
the group and its business areas as submitted by the Management Board were discussed. At
its three meetings, the Balance Sheet and Audit Committes dealt with questions on the
preparation and auditing of the Company’s and Group's accounts. [n particular, it is
responsible for evaluating the auditor’s reports and for reporting to the Supervisory Board on
its assessment of the explanations in the reports with regard to the Group's future develop-
ment. It has studied the reports in detail and discussed them with the auditor, primarily with
regard to the fairness of values stated, in particular those given for loan loss provisions. The
Personnel Committee, which among cther things prepares personnel decisions for the
Supervisory Board and is responsible for approving the granting of loans to officers and other
transactions between officers and the Company or its subsidaries, held five meetings. The
two meetings of the Committee for Credit and Market Risks dealt with loans requiring
approval. Reportable toans were taken note of and decisions were made on all other matters
requiring Management Board approval either by law or under the articles of association, such
as the acquisition of shareholdings. In urgent cases, loans requiring approval were also dealt
with on a written basis by the Express Committee. There was one meeting of the Capita!

Measures Committee, which discusses possible capital measures. The committees have also

made decisions on a written basis where necessary.



The auditors PWC Deutsche Revision Aktiengeselischaft Wirtschaftsprifungsgeselischaft,
Frankfurt am Main, who were commissioned to carry out the audit by the Supervisory Board,
have examined the annual accounts, company books and financial overview as at 31 Decem-
ber 2000 and approved them without gqualification. This also applies to the Group annual
accounts and the Group financial overview. All the reports compiled by the auditor were pres-
ented for examination by all members of the Supervisory Board. The Superviscry Board adop-

ted the audit report in full.

The Supervisory Board has examined the annual accounts, financial overview and the Direc-
tors' propased altocation of balance sheet profits as well as the Group accounts and the
Group financial overview. The auditor took part in the Supervisory Boards' deliberations on
these proposals. Having concluded its examination, the Superviscry Board has no objections
to make. it has made enguiries about the accounting options exercised in the annual

. accounts and set out in the notes to the accounts and approves them. In its supervisory role,
it is unaware of any risks which are not sufficiently covered in the annual accounts. The
Supervisory Board seconds the views of the Management Board in the financial overview. It
approves the annual accounts, which are therefore passad, and supports the proposed
allocation of profits. The Supervisory Board takes note of the Group accounts and approves

them.

At the Annual General Meeting on 20 June 2000, Dr. Thilo Kopfler resigned as Chairman of
the Bank’s Management Board of Depfa Bank and was appointed a member of the ]
Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board would fike to thank Dr. Képﬂér for his extraordinary
commitment to the Bank and for his 13 years of foyalty and co-operation on the Management
Board.

Mr Michael A. Kremer was appointed a full member of the Management Board and with effect
from 1 February 2000.

At the Annual General Meeting on 20 June 2000 Dr. John W.M. Simons resigned as member
of the Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board would like to thank him for loyalty and co-

operation.

‘ The Annual General Meeting on 20 June 2000 appointed Dr. Képfler, Erwin Flieger, Chairman

of the Management of Bayerische Beamten Lebensversicherung a.G., and Prof. Dr. Dr. h.c.




muit. Hans Tietmeyer, Chairman of Deutsche Bundesbank (ret'd) as new members of the
Supervisory Board. Conseguently, the Supervisory Board once again comprised 21 members.

Mr Jirgen Steinert resigned as President of GDW Bundesverband deutscher
Wohnungsunternehmen e.V. and therefore also as member of the Supervisory Board with
effect from 28 February 2001. The Supervisory Board would like to thank him for his loyalty

and co-operation of many years.

At its meeting on 2 April 2001, the Supervisory Board appeinted Dr. Reinhard Grzesik and
Jurgen Karcher as full members of the Management Board and they will join at the next
available opportunity. Mr Karcher is scheduied to take up office as Member of the
Management Board on 1 June 2001, and Dr. Grzesik on 1 January 2002 at the latest.

Wiesbaden, May 2001 : '

The Supervisory Board

Dr. JUrgen Westphal

{Chairman)
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DePfa
Deutsche Pfandbrief
Bank AG :

Securities |D No. 804 700

Notice to Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,
the invitation to our

twelfth ordinary Annual General Meeting,

on Wednesday, 20 June 2001, 10.30 hrs,
at the Kurhaus, Kurhausplatz, 65189 Wiesbaden

was published in the Bundesanzeiger (Federal Gazette) No. 86 on 9 May 2001.
Notice of the meeting and the following explanatory notes are hereby given again.

Agenda

Presentation of the approved annual accounts as at
31 December 2000, the Directors’ Report and Report
of the Supervisory Board as well as presentation of
the Group annual accounts and the Group Directors’
Report for the 2000 financial year.

Appropriation of retained profit

The Management and Supervisory Boards are proposing

to use the retained profit for 2000 amounting to EUR

40,000,000.00 as follows:

a) Payment of a dividend of
EUR 1.00 per unit share

b) Transfer to other

EUR 36,000,000.00

profit reserves EUR 4,000,000.00
Formal approval of the actions of the Management
Board for financial year 2000

The Management and Supervisory Boards propose that
formal approval be granted.

Formal approval of the actions of the Supervisory
Board for financial year 2000

The Management and Supervisory Boards propose that
formal approval be granted.

Appointment of the auditors

The Supervisory Board proposes that auditors PWC
Deutsche Revision Aktiengesell-schaft Wirtschatts-
prifungsgesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main, be appointed as

the auditors for financial year 2001.

Election to the Supervisory Board

Under §§ 98 para. 1, 101 para. 1 AKtG, § 76 BetrVG 1952
and § 8 of the Articles of Association, the Supervisory
Board consists of fourteen members 10 be elected by the
Annual General Meeting and seven members to be

-elected by the employees. The Annual General Meeting is

not bound to the proposed candidates.

The period of office of all members of the Supervisory
Board ends with the close of the Annual General Meeting
on 20 June 2001. The members previously elected by the
shareholders were as follows:

Dr. Jirgen Westphal (Chairman), Christian Graf von
Bassewitz (Debuty Chairman),Prof. Dr. Dr. Ann-Kristin
Achleitner, Dr. Richard Brantner, Wolfgang Fauter, Erwin
Flieger, Dr. Friedrich-Adolf Jahn, Dr. Thio Képfier,
Jacques Lebhar, Dr. Rolf Schmid, Jurgen Strauf3, Prof. Dr.
Dr. h.c. mult. Hans Tietmeyer, Dr. Georg Freiherr von -

Waldenfels.



The Supervisory Board proposes that

1. CHRISTIAN GRAF VON BASSEWITZ, Disseldor,
General partner and Management Spokesrﬁan of
Bankhaus [.ampe KG, ‘ .

- Membership of Supervisory Boards /
Supervisory Bodies: '

» Condor/Optima-Versicherungen
{Chairman of the Supervisory Boards)

* DePfa Bank AG
(Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board)

* DePfa Holding Verwaltungsgeselischaft mbH
(Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board)

* Deutscher Ring Krankenversicherungsverein a.G.
{Member of the Supervisory Board)

» famila Handels-Zentralgeselischaft mbH & Co. KG
(Member of the Supervisory Board)

* Universal-Investment-Geselischaft mbH
(Membér of the Supervisory Board)

» Lampebank International S.A.
(Memper of the Management Board)

» |.ampe Beteiligungsgesslischaft mbH
(Member of the Advisory Board)

* Lampe Immohbilien GmbH
(Member of the Advisory Board)

2. DR. RICHARD BRANTNER, Schramberg,
Member of a Management Board {ret'd),
- Membership of Supervisory Boards /
Supervisory Bodies:
* DePfa Bank AG
{Member of the Supervisory Board)
* DePfa-Bank Europe plc
{Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors),

WOLFGANG FAUTER, Hamburg,
Chairman of the Management Boards of Deutsche Ring ‘
Versicherungen,
- Membership of Supervisory Boards/
Supervisory Bodies:
» Deutscher Ring Bausparkasse AG
{Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
* DePfa Bank AG
{(Member of the Supervisory Board)
* DePfa Holding Verwaltungsgeselischaft mbH
{Member of the Supervisory Board)
« OVB Vermogensberatung AG
(Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
* Roland Rechtsschutz-Versicherungs-AG
{(Member of the Supervisory Board)
s ZEUS Service AG
(Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
o ZEUS Vermittlungsgesellschaft mbH
{Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board),

ERWIN FLIEGER, Geretsried,
Chairman of the Management Boards of Bayerische .
Beamten Lebensversicherung a.G. and BBV Holding AG,

-~ Membership of Supervisory Boards /
Supervisory Bodies:
e Bayerische Beamten Versicherung AG
{Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
* BBV Krankenversicherung AG
{Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
* DePfa Bank AG
(Member of the Supervisory Board)
» DePfa Holding Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH
(Member of the Supervisory Board)
¢ Neue Bayerische Beamten Lebensversicherung AG
(Chairman of the Supervisory Board),

DR. FRIEDRICH-ADOLF JAHN, Minster,
President of the Zentralverband der Deutschen Haus-,
Wohnungs- und Grund-eigentdmer e. V.
- Member of the Supervisory Board der
* DePfa Bank AG




8. DR. THILO KOPFLER, Wiesbaden,

Chairman of the Management Boards of DePfa Deutsche

Pfandbriefoank AG and DePfa Bank AG (ret'd),
- Membership of Supervisory Boards /
Supervisory Bodies:

* Aachener Siedlungs- und Wohnungsgesellschaft

mbH
{Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
* DePfa Bank AG
(Member of the Superviscry Board)
* TLG Treuhand Liegenschaftsgesellschaft mbH
{(Member of the Supervisory Board),

7. JACQUES LEBHAR, Paris,
Chairman of the Management Board and Managing
Director of Entenial,
— Membership of Supervisory Boards /
Supervisory Bodies: ‘
* DePfa Bank AG
(Member of the Supervisory Board)
* DePfa Holding Verwaltungsgesellschaft mboH
(Member of the Supervisory Board)
* ESL & Network SA
{Deputy Chairman of the Subervisory Board)
= ESL & Network {France] SAS
(Director)
* La Mondiale Partenaire
{Director)
* Vauban Mobilisations Garanties
(Member of the Supervisory Board)

8. DR. ROLF SCHMID, Ettlingen,
President of the Federal and State pensions office,
— Membership of Supervisory Boards /
Supervisory Bodies:
» DePfa Bank AG
{Member of the Supervisory Board)
* DePfa Holding Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH
(Member of the Supervisory Board),

9. JURGEN STRAUBR, Stockdorf,

Princical Agent for Germany of the Schweizerische
Lebensversicherungs- und Rentenanstalt,
- Membership of Supervisory Boards /
Supervisory Bodies:
* DePfa Bank AG
{(Member of the Supervisory Board)
» DePfa Holding Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH
(Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
¢ Swiss Life Partner Aktiengesellschaft
Vermittlung von Versicherungen und Finanzdienst-
leistungen (Brokerage of insurance and financial
services)
{Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
* Swiss Life Asset Management Kapitalanlagegeseli-
schaft mbH
(Member of the Superviscry Board),

10. PROF. DR. DR. H.C. MULT. HANS TIETMEYER,

Konigstein,
President of Deutsche Bundesbank {ret'd),
- Membership of Supervisory Boards /
Supervisory Bodies:
» Bank fUr internationalen Zahlungsverkehr (BIS)
(Member of the Board of Directors)
« BDO Deutsche Warentreuhand AG
{(Member of the Supervisory Board)
» DePfa Bank AG
(Member of the Supervisory Board)
* DWS Investment GmbH
(Member of the Supervisory Board)
* ING Group N.V.
(Member of the Supervisory Board),




11. DR. JURGEN WESTPHAL, Hamburg,
Minister (ret'd), Attorney-at-law, Judge at the Hamburg
Constitutional Court
- Membership of Supervisory Boards /
Supervisory Bodies:
* DePfa Bank AG
(Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
*» Treugarant AG, Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft
(Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
« Jungheinrich Aktiengesellschaft
(Member of the Supervisory Board)
* Bankhaus Joh. Berenbefg, Gossler & Co.
(Member of the Management Board)

pe re-elected as Members of the Supervisory Board for the
period until the end of the Annual General Meeting that grants
formal approval of actions for financial year 2005

and that

12, LUTZ FREITAG, Berlin,
President of the GdW Bundesverband deutscher Woh-
nungsunternehmen e.V.,
~ Membership of Supervisory Boards /
. Supervisory Bodies: '
* Aachener Minchener Beteiligungsholding AG
(Membér of the Supervisory Board)
* Deutscher Ring Lebensversicherung AG
{(Member of the Supervisory Board)
* GAGFAH
Gemeinnutzige Aktien-Gesellschaft fir Angesteli-

ten—Heimsté?ten,

13.

and

DR. PETER LAMMERSKITTEN, Kénigstein, currently a
member of the Management Board of DePfa Deutsche ‘
Pfandbriefbank AG and DePfa Bank AG

-~ Membership of Supervisory Boards /

Supervisory Bodies: ‘
» Deutsche Bau- und Grundstlcks-Aktiengesell-
schaft
{Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
¢ BHG Gesellschaft zur Betreuung von Haus- und
Grundbesitz mbH
(Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
* DePfa-Bank Europe plc
{Member of the Board of Directors)
» DePfa Bau-, Verwaltungs- und Controlling GmbH
(Chairman of the Advisory Board)
« DePfa-Bank France S.A.
{Deputy Chairman of the Management Board)
¢ DefPfa Immobilien Management AG
(Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
e DePfa Investment Bank Lid.
(Member of the Board of Directors)
s DePfa IT Services AG
{Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
* DePfa USA Inc.
(Member of the Board of Directors)
* IBS Innovative Banking Solutions AG

(Member of the Supervisory Board)
 burgbad AG
(Chairman of the Supervisory Board),




14. HANS W. REICH, Kronberg,

Spokesman of the Management Board of the
Kreditanstalt fir Wiederaufoau,

- — Membership of Supervisory Boards /

Supervisory Bodies:

* ALSTOM GmbH
(Member of the Supervisory Beard)

* Deutsche Telekom AG
{Member of the Supervisory Board)

*» HUK-COBURG-Aligemeine-Versicherungs-Aktien-
gesellschaft
{Member of the Supervisory Board)

* | ebensversicherungs-Aktiengesellschaft der HUK-
COBURG (HUK-COBURG-Leben)

(Member of the Supervisory Board)

» Krankenversicherungs-Aktiengesellschaft der HUK-
COBURG (HUK-COBURG-Krankenversicherung)
(Member of the Supervisory Board)

* |KB Deutsche Industriebank AG
{(Member of the Supervisory Board)

* RAG Aktiengesellschaft
(Member of the Supervisory Board)

» Thyssen Krupp Steel AG
{(Member of the Supervisory Board)

* Haftpflicht-Unterstitzungs-Kasse kraftfanrender
Beamter Deutschiand a.G.

(Member of the Supervisory Board)

* HUK-COBURG Hoiding GmbH
(Member of the Supervisory Board)

* Deutsche Energie-Agentur GmbH
(Member of the Supervisory Board),

be newly elected as Members of the Supervisory Board by

the shareholders.

7. Resolution on authorisation to acquire own shares

in accordance with § 71 para. 1 No. 7 AktG
{Companies Act) ’

The Annual General Meeting on 20 June 2000 resolved
under Point 7 of the Agenda to authorise the company to
acquire own shares.in accordance with § 71 para. 1
No. 7 AktG up to 15 December 2000. To date, no use
has been made of this authorisation.

The Management and Supervisory Boards propose that
the resolution under Point 7 of the Agenda for the Annual
General Meeting on 20 June 2000 be rescinded, a new
authorisation be granted and the following be resolved:

The company be authorised to acquire and sell own
shares for the purposes of securities trading up to
19 December 2002. The portfalio of shares to be
acquired for this purpose may not exceed 5% of the share
capital of DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG at the end
of any one day. The lowest equivalent value at which a
share can be acquired at any time will be set at the sharé’s
closing price in Xetra trading {or a comparable successor
system) on the day on which the stock exchange was
open for trading preceding the relevant purchase less
10%, the highest equivalent value is stipulated at this

-average closing price plus 10%.

Resolution on authorisation to acquire own shares in
accordance with § 71 para. 1 No. 8 AktG

The Annual General Meeting on 20 June 2000 resolved
under Point 8 of the Agenda to authorise the company to
acquire own shares in accordance with § 71 para. 1
No. 8. Use was made of this authorisation to a small
extent in April 2001 and shares amounting to approx.
0.04% of the share capital were acquired via the stock
exchange. The aim of the purchase is to acquire a mini
holding in DePfa Bank AG, which is a 99.9% subsidiary, in
the form of a share swap. The Management Board wil
report to the Annual General Meeting on this matter.

The Management and Supervisory Boards propose that
the resolution under point 8 of the Agenda for the Annual
General Meeting on 20 June 2000 be rescinded if no use
has been made of it to date, a new authorisation be

granted and the following be resolved:

The company be authorised to acquire own shares up to
a ceiling of 10% of the share capital for purposes other
than securities trading in the period up to 19 December
2002. The acquisition must take place via the stock
exchange or by means of a pubiic offer to buy directed at
all shareholders. In the event that shares are bought via
the stock exchange, the acquisition price (without
ancillary acquisition costs) or in the event that the shares



are acquired via a public offer, the offer price (without
ancillary acquisition costs) must not be more than 10%
above or below the average closing price of the com-
_ pany’s shares in Xetra trading {or a comparable succes-
sor system) on the three days on which the stock exchan-
ge is open for trading prior to the acquisition or the

obligation to acquire the shares.

The Management Board be authorised, subject to
approval by the Supervisory Board, to sell own shares
acquired on the basis of this authorisation including in
ways other than via the stock exchange or by offering
them to all shareholders if the sale takes place at a price
which is not significantly below the stock exchange price
for the company’s shares at the time of the sale. In this
‘case the number of the 'shares to be sold together with
the new shares, which were issued on the basis of an aut-
horisation to increase the capital while excludihg
shareholders’ subscription rights as defined in § 186
para. 3 Clause 4 AktG or on the basis of contingent capi-
tal as defined in §§ 221 para. 4, 186 para. 3 Clause 4
AKtG may not exceed the ceiling of 10% of the share

capital,

Subject to approval by the Supervisory Board, the shares
purchased may also be sold outside the stock exchange
without having to offer them to ail shareholders in propor-
tion to their holding in the company If this is done for the
purpose of acquiring companies or holdings in com-
panies. ‘

The shares acquired may also, subject to approval by the
Supervisory Board, be given to the holders of conversion
or option rights instead of new shares from a contingent
capital increase.

The Management Board be further authorised, subject to
approval by the Supervisory Board, to withdraw own
sharesacquired on the basis of this authorisation without
any further resolution by the Annual General Meeting.

Report by the Managemenf Board to the Annual General
Meeting on the exclusion of subscription rights provided
for under Point 8 of the Agenda in accordance with §§ 71
para. 1 No. 8 Clause 5, 186 para. 4 Clause 2 AktG

The Management Board has provided the following report on
Point 8 of the Agenda on the reasons for the planned
authorisation to exclude sharehoiders’. subscription rights.
The report will be available in the company's offices from the
day on which the Annual General Meeting is called and at the
Annual General Meeting for shareholders to examine. Upon
réquest, the report will be sent to every shareholder imme-
diately free of charge. The report contains the following items:

The authorisation envisaged under Point 8 of the Agenda also
provides for authorisation of the Management Board, subject
to approval by the Supervisory Board, to exclude share-
holders’ subscription rights up to the statutory ceiling of 10%
of the share capital when using the ruling provided in § 186
para. 3 Clause 4 AktG for selling the company’s own shares
other than via the stock exchange or by offering them to all
shareholders. Therefore together with the authorisation al-
ready contained in the Articles of Association (§ 4 para. 5,
second bullet point) and the contingent capital, which is used
excluding shareholders’ subscription rights (§ 4 para. 7 of the
Articles of Association), the own shares sold other than via the
stock exchange or by offering them to all shareholders within

v the context of the authorisation in accordance with § 186

para. 3 Clause 4 AktG may not exceed 10% of the share
capital. The company should also have the option of using
own shares as consideration for acquiring holdings or to

service conversion and option rights.

With the proposed authorisation the company requests the
option of acquiring own shares in accordance with § 71
para. 1 No. 8 AktG as was the case last year. This would enable
the company to acquire own shares of up to 10% of the share
capital for purposes other than securities trading up until 19
December 2002, The number of shares the company is permitt-
ed to own is restricted by law to 10% of the share capital in-
cluding the authorisation proposed under Point 7 of the Agen-
da (§ 71 para. 2 AktG). The acquisition can take place via the
stock exchange or via a public offer to purchase at the prices
stipulated in the authorisation and linked to the current stock

exchange price. At the same time, the shareholders’ rights and

the rule on equal treatment are appropriately preserved.




The shares acquired can either be withdrawn with the result
that the share capital is reduced or sold by public offer or via
the stock exchange. These options also preserve share-
holders’ rights.

In addition, the company is requesting authorisation to sell the
shares in other ways if this is dohe at a price which is not
significantly below the stock exchange price applicable and
the number of the shares to be sold together with other
shares, which are issued on the basis of authorisations to
increase capital excluding subscription: rights as defined in
§§ 186 para. 3 Clause 4 AktG or on the basis of contingent
capital may not in total exceed the ceiling of 10% of the share
capital. Any dilution of the value of shareholders' holdings will
be avoided thanks to the close link to the current stock
exchange price. The restriction to 10% of the total number of
shares without shareholders’ subscriptioh rights from re-
sales, approved capital and contingent capital takes account
of the shareholders’ interest in maintaining their pro rata
voting rights. This gives the company the opportunity of
offering the shares to domestic and international investors

and expanding the shareholder base and consequently
stabilising the value of the shares. It can adjust its equity fle-
xicly to commercial reguirements and react to favourable

opportunities on the stock exchange.

In addition, the company shall be enabled to use the shares it
has repurchased as consideration for the acquisition of cor-
porate holdings. This procedure, which is already provided for
in the legal grounds for § 71 para. 1 No. 8 AktG and is beco-
ming increasingly normal practice in international circles, can
lead to the more reasonable acquisi’tion of investments. In
certain cases, it can lead to available approved Tier H capital
(§ 4 para. B of the Articles of Association) not being needed.

It is also reqguested that the company be allowed to use own
shares it has acquired to satisfy the rights of holders of
convertible debentures and warrants. As a result, the capital’
increase from contingent capital could be reduced if
necessary so that any possible dilution effect is reduced stil
further.

Those shareholders who in accordance with § 15 para. 2 of the Articles of Association deposit their shares with
» DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG

» a German notary or
 securities deposit bank

at the latest on 12 June 2001 until the end of the Annual General Meeting are entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting and exer-
cise their voting rights. The deposit shall also be deemed proper if, with the approval of the depository agents, the shares are blocked
by another bank until the end of the Annual General Meeting. in the event of the shares being deposited with a notary public or securities

deposit bank, certification of the deposit must be handed to us in the original or as a certified copy by 13 June 2001.

Shareholders  are advised that they can exercise their vbte through an authorised proxy, a financial institution or a sharehoiders’

association.

Yours sincerely

DePfa Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG
The Management Board

Wiesbaden, May 2001



